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BEFORE THE | LLI NO'S POLLUTI ON CONTROL BOARD
VOLUME |

IN THE MATTER COF:

EM SSI ONS REDUCTI ONS MARKET
SYSTEM ADOPTI ON OF 35 I LL.
ADM CODE 205 AND AMENDMENTS
TO 35 ILL. ADM CODE 106

R97- 013
( RULEMAKI NO)

N N e e

The following is the transcript of a rul emaking
hearing held in the above-entitled matter, taken
stenographically by GEANNA M | AQUI NTA, CSR a
notary public within and for the County of Cook and
State of Illinois, before Charles M Feinen, Hearing
Oficer, at 100 West Randol ph Street, Room 9- 040,
Chicago, Illinois, on the 21st day of April, 1997,

A.D., conmencing at the hour of 10:00 o'clock a.m
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HEARI NG TAKEN BEFORE:

I LLINO S POLLUTI ON CONTROL BOARD,
100 West Randol ph Street
Suite 11-500
Chi cago, Illinois 60601
(312) 814-4925
BY: MR CHARLES M FEI NEN
HEARI NG OFFI CER.

I LLINO S POLLUTI ON CONTROL BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

M. Richard MG |

Ms. Kathleen M Hennessey
M. Joseph Yi

Ms. Elizabeth Ann

Ms. Marili MFawn

I LLI NO S ENVI RONVENTAL PROTECTI ON AGENCY MEMBERS
PRESENT:

Ms. Bonni e Sawyer

M . Bharat WMathur
M. Roger Kanerva

OTHER AUDI ENCE MEMBERS WERE PRESENT AT THE HEARI NG
BUT NOT LI STED ON THI S APPEARANCE PAGE.
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MR, FEINEN: Good norning. This is continuing
on the record fromthe [ ast hearing date being Apri
21st at 10: 00 o' cl ock.

I just want to thank the court reporter for
comng. | guess it was ny fault for not sending on
the message that we would start a little bit
earlier. | just want to nake that clear so
everybody knows it's not the court reporter's
faul t.

Before we start with today's schedule for
testinmony fromthe ERVS Coalition and sone ot her
parties, Ron Burke fromthe American Lung
Associ ati on, Roy Cobb fromJefferson Smurfit, before
we start that, there's a couple of notions that canme
in prior to today and this norning. One notion that
cane in to the Board's office on April 18th was for
M. Trepanier requesting the hearing officer
reconsi der the order previously dealing with a
notion for an extension of tine.

I"mgoing to hold or reserve ruling on that
until later today to see if M. Trepani er cones
up -- shows up I should say to the hearing.

The ot her notion that was presented this

nmorni ng was fromthe ERVS Coalition, and I'm

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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wondering if we need to rule on that now or if we
can wait until they testify and we get into the
guesti oni ng.

Does anyone have a problemif we just wait
for that?

MR SAINES: That's fine.

MR FEINEN: Ckay. Well, then with that out of
the way, | want to quickly talk about the schedul e.
I'"ve tal ked about this off the record. So | just
want to put it on the record.

I"m 1| ooking at closing the public coments
on May 16th, and then we'll go fromthere. Most
likely, the Board will go to first notice sonetine
in June, nost likely June 19th, and we'll go from
there. | don't think I need to go through the rest
of the schedule. August nost |ikely the second
notice and final in Cctober, tine permtting, and
we' Il see how things go.

Wth that, | think I'Il turn it over to

| ERG to present their witnesses and go fromthere.

M5. ROSEN:  Good norning. |'m Witney Rosen
with the Illinois Environnmental Regulatory G oup
Today we have -- we will be presenting testinony by

M. Sid Marder who is the executive director of

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

| ERG M. Jerry Starkey from M I I ennium
Petrochem cal s, Incorporated and Bob Elvert from
Mobi | e Busi ness Resources Corporation.

There are copies of the prefiled testinony
and attachnents on the table. Al so a docunent
entitled Illinois Environnental Regulatory G oup
proposed | anguage, which M. Marder will be
di scussi ng.

| have supplied those for the Board as
well. | guess we should now begin with M. Marder,
and do we swear himor do all --

MR, FEINEN. Have the witnesses --
M5. ROSEN:  -- of then®
MR, FEINEN.: Why don't we swear all the
witnesses in at one tinme and we'll be done with it?
(Wtnesses sworn.)
VWHEREUPON:
SI DNEY M MARDER
JERRY M STARKEY,

R S B OB ELVERT,
called as witnesses herein, having been first duly
sworn, deposeth and saith as foll ows:

M5. ROSEN: If you'd want to begin, Sid?

MR, MARDER: Good norning. M nane is Sidney

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Marder. | amthe executive director of the Illinois
Envi ronnental Regulatory Goup, IERG | also serve
as environnental consultant to the Illinois State

Chanber of Commerce.

| appreciate the opportunity to present
testinmony before the Board on this matter

Today IERG will be presenting a panel of
wi t nesses who will cover differing aspects of |ERG s
and the Illinois Chanber's involvenent in
devel opnent of the Em ssions Reduction Market System
proposal , ERVB

VWile our testinmony will denonstrate the
| evel of effort that |ERG nenbers put into the
devel opnent of the proposal, which is before the
Board today, it's inmportant to understand that al
of such efforts were, in essence, prelimnary to
this Board proceedi ng.

It is, in fact, the Board proceedi ng which
is the formal open public rul emaki ng process from
which a legally binding regulation can result.

W al so recognize it is appropriate and
proper that any issues resolved prior to fornal
rul emaki ng are open to review and scrutiny by any

and all participants at the Board regul atory

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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heari ngs.

The primary purpose of ny testinmony will be
to present the broad policy decisions which faced
| ERG nenbers as well -- early in the process and
IERG s staff's role in analyzing the inpact of these
i ssues and conveying the sanme to the ful
menber shi p.

Additionally, I will offer 1ERG s
perspective of the legislative intent behind Section
9.8 of the Environnental Protection Act. | wll
al so identify where | ERG believes that inprovenents
to the proposed rules are still needed.

["I'l be summarizing ny testinony. The
Board has the prefiled full text. This regards
broad policy decisions. It was very early in this
process of determ ning the percentage reductions
whi ch woul d be required for each category of
vol atile organic material emtters, very early in
t hat process, the Agency proposed that an em ssion
tradi ng systemwould be put in place for the point
source category.

Quite frankly, the nmenbers of | ERG accepted
the fact that whether equitable or not, the reality

was that point sources would be asked to nake

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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addi ti onal reductions.

That bei ng the case, | ERG began to anal yze
the various draft ERMS proposals to determ ne the
real effect they would have on our nenbers.

Fromthis analysis, two broad policy shifts
becanme very clear. First, the proposal shifts our
regul atory obligation froman all owable basis to an
actual basis. The severity of the ampunt of VOM
em ssi on reductions, while significant and difficult
to achieve, pale next to the effect of determ ning
t he sources baseline by using actual rather than
al | owabl e eni ssi ons.

Under the existing system a facility has
the right to enit as many tons of VOMas it w shes
so long as it conplies with applicable em ssion
st andar ds.

Under the ERMS proposal, a facility would
be prohibited from addi ng even one additional ton of
VOM em ssi ons unless an offsetting ton could be
generated internally or purchased on the market.

VWil e our nenbers ultimately accepted this
concept, it was one of the driving issues that
nmotivated | ERG to aggressively argue for provisions

in both the |egislation and the proposed

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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regul ati ons.

The Board should be aware that the ERMS s
cap and all ocate provision will result in a |large
contribution towards attai nnent and mai nt enance of
the national anbient air quality standard for ozone.

To ny know edge, no ot her proposal for the
area or nobile source categories in Illinois
i ncl udes the em ssion cap concept. Rather
traditional conmand and control options are being
consi dered, which by their very nature, allow for
unlimted growt h.

The second mmjor issue is that the proposa
shifts the regulatory burden fromthe regulators to
the regulated. In the past, for point sources, and
in the present for both area and nobil e sources, the
burden of defining and supporting the validity of a
regul ation falls on the Agency.

For exanple, in the case of a RACT rule,
the Agency would identify the source and/or em ssion
units which would be affected as well as the type
and nature of the controls to be inplenented.

Further, the Agency had the burden to
denonstrate that the proposed rules were technically

feasi bl e and economi cally reasonable to the extent

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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required by the Act.

Conversely, the ERVMS program all ows the
Agency to identify a broad class of affected
i ndustry selected solely by |evel of em ssions and
to assign a mandatory reduction |level. The decision
of how to achieve this reduction is left to the
emtter, and the burden of proving equity is renoved
fromthe Agency's shoul ders.

Those are two major issues in shifts in
this policy which we essentially have agreed to, but
they drove our thinking in the process.

In Iight of these broad policy shifts, the
menbership believed that it was inportant to include
certain protections in the ERMS enabling
| egislation. Therefore, the menbership di scussed
two approaches to |egislative devel opnent. Nunber
one, would be a very specific and detail ed | anguage
that established -- that woul d establish the genera
provi sions of the program or nunber two, the second
approach woul d be generic | anguage aut hori zing the
Agency to devel op an ERVS program for submittal to
the Board with certain guiding principles.

The menbership i ncluded that generic

legislation with certain protections was the

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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preferred option. To protect against the continuous
ratcheti ng down of the cap, the menbership believed
it was inportant to ensure that one, em ssion
reductions woul d not be required unl ess necessary
for the attai nment and mai ntenance of the nationa
anbient air quality standard for ozone.

Two, that any em ssions reductions would
not be inposed until after full rul emaki ng under
Section 27 of the Act.

Three, that stationary sources would not be
required to reduce em ssions to an extent which
exceeds their proportionate share.

Four, the program nust be as cost-effective
as traditional command and control. And five, the
cost-effectiveness of other types of controls on
ot her sources nust be considered as part of any
future reductions.

The intent of the above five factors was to
ensure that a conplete review of all control options
for all categories be considered and eval uated prior
to sinply ratcheting down stationary sources under
t he ERVS program

Wth regard to the proportionate share

concern, Section 9.7(C)(3) of the Act was incl uded

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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to assure that the three em ssion sectors, point,
area, and nobile woul d reduce em ssions roughly
proportionately.

The nmeasure of proportionality would cover
the entire tine frame in which the sectors made
reductions or were to nmake reductions as required to
meet their obligations under the Act.

Now, al t hough | ERG has expended
considerable tinme and energy in attenpting to
resolve all of the issues inherent in the ERVS
program there are still four issues which we
believe if resolved differently would allow for a
nore equitable and fair program

Cenerally, 1ERG s concerns are as foll ows:
First, the proposal should allow participants unti
the end of the year 2000 seasonal allotnment period
to operate pursuant to an allotnent.

Secondl y, the ERVS dat abase shoul d provide
i nformati on on the cost of ATUs purchased to the
extent feasible.

Third, as with regards to the cost of an
ATU under the ACMA t hroughout the discussions of
this program |ERG has continuously opposed the

i mposition of a set price for obtaining an ATU under

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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t he regul ar access to the ACNA

| ERG believes that due to the uncertainties
and the fact that the ACMA will in all Iikelihood be
sought only after other attenpts to generate or
purchase ATUs has been exhausted, the price should
be only nom nally above the established market
price.

Accordingly, we would reconmend that the
multiple for regular access to the ACVA be 1.1 tines
the market price and the multiple for special access
be 1.2 times the market price.

Four, the proposal as it's drafted right
now, fails to provide for the inclusion of
previously acquired em ssion reduction credits in
the source's baseline em ssion determ nation

For exanple, in 1996, one of our nenber
conpani es acquired eni ssion reduction credits for
use as New Source Review offsets for a future
expansi on proj ect.

However, due to the expansion project
schedul e, a state construction permt will not be
i ssued by the Agency prior to the January 1st, 1998,
date that's included in the regulation nowin

proposed Section 205.320(f).

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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W believe that proposed Section 205.320(f)
will not apply to this situation. Moreover, as
i ndi cated by M. Ronmine at the February 10th, 1997,
hearing in this matter, the Agency's current
proposal does not address this situation

Thus, there is no mechani sm by which such
em ssion reduction credits will be incorporated into
the source's ERVS baseline. The result is that a
conpany who diligently engaged in early planning
activities, for exanple, planning activities prior
to the inplementation of the ERVS programso as to
assure conpliance with New Source Review offsetting
requi renents woul d be unfairly penalized.

As noted in ny prefiled testinony, we have
di scussed this issue with Agency representatives,
and we have reached agreenent upon proposed | anguage
whi ch addresses his concern

The | anguage proposed for inclusion at new
Section 205.320 sub (g) is set forth within the
docunent entitled Illinois Environmental Regul atory
G oup's proposed | anguage, which is dated Apri
21st, 1997.

| ERG requests that the Board nodify the

current proposal to include IERG s proposed | anguage

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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so as to allow for a transition for previously
acqui red em ssion reduction credits.
| appreciate the opportunity to participate

in this proceeding, and I will be happy to add --
answer any of your questions on ny testinony, |
bel i eve, at the end of our presentation

M5. ROSEN:  Yes. At this tinme, 1'd like to have
M. Marder identify his prefiled testinmony for the
record.

MR, MARDER: That's it.

M5. ROSEN:  Are you familiar with this
docunent ?

MR MARDER Yes, | am

M5. ROSEN: Is it a true and accurate copy of
the prefiled testinony that you subnmitted for the
pr oceedi ng?

MR MARDER: Yes, it is.

M5. ROSEN: Ckay. | would like to nmove to have
this docunent adnitted as Exhibit -- | believe we're
on 597

MR FEINEN: In your prefiled --
M5. ROSEN:  And the attachnment is included.
MR, FEINEN: Ckay. This docunent includes the

attachment A. Excuse ne. This prefiled testinony

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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of M. Marder dated April 2nd, 1997. That's on Page
17, and then the attachnent A is dated April 7th,
1995. It's to the nenbers of the Illinois

Envi ronnental Regulatory Goup, IERG fromthe |IERG
staff. |Its reason is VOM em ssions trading issue
paper .

["lI'l nove that plus the attachnment -- 1'1]
move -- 1'Il mark prefiled testinony of Sidney
Marder and attachnment A as nunber 59.

If there's no objections, I'll just have
that entered into the record. Seeing none, it'll be
entered in as 59.

(Hearing Exhibit No. 59
mar ked for identification,
4-21-97.)
M5. ROSEN: Ckay. And then the |anguage that
M. WMarder referenced Illinois Environnental
Regul atory Group proposed | anguage dated April 21st,
1997. If we can have that admtted as well?
MR FEINEN: |'mmarking as Exhibit No. 60 the
[1l1inois Environnental Regul atory G oup proposed
| anguage dated April 21st, 1997.
This seenms to be what was passed out on the

back table also. If you don't have a copy, fee

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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free to get it. That's been marked as Exhi bit No.
60.

If there's no objection, we'll enter it
into the record as Exhibit No. 60. Seeing none,
then I"Il mark or enter into the record as Exhibit
No. 60, Illinois Environmental Regulatory G oup
proposed | anguage dated April 21st, 1997.

(Hearing Exhibit No. 60
mar ked for identification,
4-1-97.)

M5. ROSEN:  Ckay. We would like to continue
with the summary of M. Jerry Starkey's prefiled
testi nmony.

MR, STARKEY: (Good norning. Thank you for the
opportunity to testify today. M name is Jerry
Starkey. | amthe Regional Environnental Manager
for MIIennium Petrochem cal s | ncorporated,
previ ously known as Quantum Cheni cal Cor porati on.

I amalso an active participant in the
[Ilinois Environnental Regulatory Goup. | served
as chairman of |1ERG from 1995 through 1996, as
chemi cal sector representative on | ERG s executive
committee from 1991 to the present, as the work

group chairman for TERG s Cean Air Act work group

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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from1991 to the present, and as a nenber
representative of |ERG s Ozone Attai nment Strategy
Wor k G oup.

My testinmony today is intended to provide
historical testinmony as to | ERG s invol venent in
devel opnent of the Agency's ERMS proposal

First, I'd like to provide a brief
expl anation of I1ERG s nenbership as an illustration
of the diversity of the conmpanies that will be
i npacted by the ERMS program

IERGis a not-for-profit Illinois
corporation conprised of some 57 nenber conpanies
engaged in industry, commerce, manufacturing,
agriculture, trade, transportation, or other rel ated
activities, and which persons, entities, or
busi nesses are regul ated by governmental agencies
whi ch promul gate, admi nister, or enforce
environnental |aws, regulations, or policies.

O our nenber conpanies, 40 conpanies
participate on the | ERG ERVS work group. Agency
data referenced in ny witten prefiled testi nony and
i ncluded in the docunent attached to my prefiled
testinmony as attachnent A, VOM Enitters Subject to

ERM5, that docunent indicates that these work group

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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menber conpanies represent 45 facilities engaged in
various types of activities.

The estimated VOM eni ssions fromthese
facilities range froma |l ow of ten tons per season
to 1,100 tons per season. Qur nenbers' size and
diversity caused us to be very careful in our
del i berations regarding the ERVS proposal so as to
ensure that all types and categories of sources were
treated fairly and equitably.

The Agency's records indicate that |ERG
menbers account for 18 percent of the sonme of 245
facilities covered by the ERMS proposal

But al t hough | ERG nenbers' facilities
account for sone 48 percent of the total em ssions,
many of the nenbers can easily be classified as
small emtters.

It is inmportant for the Board to understand
the context of small in this setting. A very large
capitalization conpany may have sone very snal
emtting facilities. Likewise, a fairly smal
capitalization conpany can have a very | arge
emtting facility.

| ERG nenbers understand the dil enma faced

by a small, in the sense of capitalization, conpany

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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when faced with capital expenditures which threaten
its net worth.

It was incunbent upon IERG to assess the
i npact on both large emtters, those with multiple
em ssion units and small emtters, those with few
em ssion units.

We were strong supporters of limting the
entry level of ERV5 to a ten ton per season
threshold. The intent was that this approach woul d
tend to elimnate snmaller facilities from coverage
under the program

I would like also to provide an overview of
| ERG s involvenment in the devel opnent of the ERVB
proposal . By way of background, it should be
understood that the basis for the formation of |IERG
as an association was to create an entity whose
purpose was to be inter -- was to interact as early
as professionally -- pardon ne. An entity whose
purpose would be to interact as early and as
professionally as possible with the regul ators
charged with designing, drafting, and ultimtely
i npl enenting regul ati ons that affect menber
operations.

IERG is obligated to provide the Agency

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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wi th our best information, thoughts, and rationale
as to the inpacts from proposed regul ations. In our
opinion, it is the Agency's obligation to craft
regul ati ons that are workable.

Only through fulfillnment of these
obligations can we assure that the ultimte goal of
the regul ation, to enhance environnental quality, is
achi eved.

To that end, |ERG engaged in a tinme and
resource intensive effort in working with our
menber shi p, the Agency, and our sister associations
to assist in crafting a workabl e ERVS program The
| ERG nenbers grappled with and di scussed the
fundanmental policy issues that surround the ERMS
program si nce the begi nning of devel opnent of the
ERMS concept .

The initial in-depth policy discussions
provi ded the basis for the nmenbers' position that
certain protection should be contained within the
ERMS enabling legislation. Once those protections
were afforded, the next step becane ensuring that
those protections were carried through to the
regul ati ons.

As the detail ed process progressed, |ERG

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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noved beyond the broad policy issues to focusing on
many of the intricate and site-specific issues.
Overall, I ERG sought to ensure that a flexible and
wor kabl e program be put into place.

| ERG s regul atory devel opnent efforts are
further detailed in my witten prefiled testinony.
| ERG s objective in undertaking the above-nentioned
process was to inplenent a constructive procedure
for forwarding to the Agency a consensus | ERG
position as to the issues of concern and suggested
resol uti ons and obtai ni ng feedback fromthe Agency
concer ni ng those issues.

We believe the end result was beneficial to
all participants. The process enabled a group
af fected sources that did not have the background or
under st andi ng gai ned from participating in the
Agency's design team di scussions to provide a
di fferent perspective on the proposal

The Agency was able to attenpt to address
| ERG s concerns by directing its resources in an
efficient manner. However, while this process was
beneficial, it was not, nor should it be, considered
a substitute for the public hearing process being

undert aken by the Board.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Once again, thank you for the opportunity
to testify on this matter, and I will be available
to answer any questions concerning the testinony
presented. | believe the questioning will be
directed to the panel as a whole at the end of the
testi nmony.

M5. ROSEN: Thank you, M. Starkey. 1|'m going
to hand you this docunment for identification. Do
you recogni ze that docunent?

MR, STARKEY: Yes, | do.

M5. ROSEN:  Could you identify it, please?

MR, STARKEY: This is the prefiled testinony
that was filed on April 2nd.

M5. ROSEN: And that's a true and accurate
copy?

VR STARKEY: Yes, it is.

M5. ROSEN: Al right. W'd Ilike to nmove to
have this admtted as docunment 61, and | woul d note
that the attachnment is included, attachment A

MR FEINEN: |'mmarking as Exhibit No. 61 the
prefiled testinmony of Jerry Starkey, which includes
attachment A entitled VOMEnmitters subject to ERVB
Derived from | EPA Dat abase

If there's no objections to that being
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entered into the record, I'll enter it into the
record. Seeing no objections, that's entered into
the record as Exhibit No. 61. That's the prefiled
testinmony of Jerry Starkey dated April 2nd, 1997.
It includes the Attachment A, VOM emtters subject
to ERVS Derived From | EPA Dat abase, which is
actually msspelled. It says dase. So if you have
one that says dase, that's the one we're talking
about .
(Hearing Exhibit No. 61
mar ked for identification,
4-21-97.)
M5. ROSEN:  Thank you, M. Feinen.
W'd like to -- are you ready?
MR ELVERT: Yes.
M5. ROSEN: Ckay. We will continue now with
M. Bob Elvert who will be reading his prefiled
testinmony into the record. Thank you, Bob
MR, ELVERT: Thank you.

Good nmorning. My nane is Bob Elvert. |'m
the M dwest Regi on Senior State Regul atory Expert
for Mobil Business Resources Corporation. |
appreciate this opportunity to provide testinony on

behal f of the Illinois Environmental Regul atory
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G oup and Mobil G| Corporation before the Illinois
Pol lution Control Board regarding the Illinois

Envi ronnental Protection Agency's proposed Eni ssions
Reducti on Market System or ERMS program

My predecessor and | have been active
partici pants on Mbil's behalf in the ERVE work
group process fromits inception. |In addition, |I've
coordi nated input fromthe petrol eum sector of
| ERG s nenbers on this issue.

Thr oughout the entire process, all parties
have been open to constructive ideas on how Illinois
can adopt a conpliance programthat will neet the
Clean Air Act volatile organic materials or VOM
reduction requirements while being flexible and
agency/industry friendly.

In addition to the Joliet Refinery, which
is a large source of VOM enissions within the area,
Mobil QI Corporation also owns and operates two
marketing term nals and a crude product pipeline
breakout facility. This pipeline facility is an
addi ti onal source identified since the prefiled
coments, and these are snaller sources of VOM
em ssions that will be directly affected by the

proposed rul e.
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These four facilities jointly produce and
supply autonotive gasoline and distillate fue
t hrough branded retail outlets in the Chicago
nmetropol i tan area and throughout the m dwest
region. Therefore, we have great interest in any
proposed regul ati on that would affect the daily
operations and conpliance options of these
facilities.

I am here today to discuss our reasons for
accepting the ERVMS program as the noist viable
alternative to historical comrand and control
conpl i ance requirenents.

Let me begin by saying that Mbil supports
cost-effective clean air progranms. As corporate
citizens in lllinois, we share the I EPA' s conmmt nment
to a healthy environment. M dwest operations of
Mobil's affiliates are supported by over 700
enpl oyees who are conmitted to protecting the
envi ronnent and operating these facilities safely
and efficiently while providing quality goods and
services to the public.

As Mobil has al ready nade consi derable
capital investnents to inplenent previous federa

and state Clean Air Act requirements, a program such
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as ERMS that all ows em ssion source flexibility,
while still obtaining conpliance, is very
attractive

In order to understand the conplexity of
refinery operations and why a flexible conpliance
programlike ERVS is beneficial, let me give you an
overal |l picture of typical operations and the types
of em ssion units of which they are conprised.

Mobil's Joliet refinery, |ike many ot her
refineries, is constructed of several |arge
production units including a distillation unit,
catal ytic crackers, thermal cracker, catalytic
refornmer and hydrotreaters, an alkylation unit,
product blending facilities, and supporting utility
units that together process crude oil into many
usabl e products.

These products range from gasol i ne and
liquefied petroleumgas or LPG on the light side to
fuel oils, asphalt, and coke on the heavy side. It
shoul d be noted that the production units | have
nmenti oned above include additional individua
em ssi on sources such as fuel conbustion devices,
boil ers, process units, storage tanks, wastewater

facilities and other m scell aneous units that can
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amount to over 100 individual em ssion units.

Refineries, |like many other |arge point
sources, have made significant reductions of VOM
em ssion in the past as part of various federal and
state regul atory requirenents such as New Source
Per f ormance Standards, National Em ssion Standards
for Hazardous Air Pollutants and Rate of Progress
Regul ati ons, RACT controls, and reformul ated
gasol i ne standards.

For the Joliet refinery, we have reduced
VOM em ssi ons through control equi prent
installations or operation changes related to
ref or mul at ed gasol i ne production, wharf | oading
restrictions, wastewater handling, and fugitive
em ssi ons conponent nonitoring inspection and
mai nt enance.

To date, the cost to inplenent these
controls at Joliet has been estimated to be nore
than $5 mllion with an additional -- annual cost of
$100, 000 to ensure conpliance.

Fromthe pro-active side, Mbil has already
spent over $350,000 voluntarily in the past seven
years to reduce tank em ssion | osses in sone of our

tanks in Joliet through seal inprovements. These
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i nprovenents al one have reduced the VOM eni ssions by
approxi mately 100 tons during the sunmer ozone
season.

It should be pointed out the ERMS program
and its 12 percent VOM em ssion reduction
requirenents will only apply to three of the six
refineries in the state of Illinois. The other
three are located in areas of the state which --
where em ssion reduction is not required and the
ERVS programwi || not apply.

In addition, a fourth refinery is |ocated
just beyond the Chicago netropolitan ozone
nonattai nment area across the state border in
Indiana. As a result, Mbil is very interested in a
program such as ERV5, which will allow for the
managi ng of future control costs, especially in the
very conpetitive mdwest fuels narket.

This |l eads to why Mbil accepts the ERVS
program W recognize that the Cean Air Act
mandat es further reductions from stationary sources
| ocated in severe ozone nonattai nment areas, and
that the flexibility provided within the ERVS
program al l ows each facility, whether it be |arge,

medi um or small, to decide how they choose to
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obt ai n conpliance through the year 2000.

VWile the required 12 percent VOM reduction
froma source's baseline will not be easy, it wll
provide certainty for the purposes of long-term
pl anni ng, an inportant factor in any conpetitive
mar ket .

Froma refinery industry perspective, the
proposed 12 percent VOM fixed reduction allows for
such planning. Should further reduction be
necessary, approval fromthe Illinois Pollution
Control Board will be necessary.

The ERMS programwi |l provide equity for
all affected VOM sources within the Chicago
nmetropol i tan ozone nonattai nnent area, not only from
a VOM eni ssion reduction standpoint, but also for
providing equal flexibility to conply.

The Joliet refinery and the other sources
t hat have pro-actively over conplied with the
federal VOM enmission rule will be able to obtain
such credits for the proactive steps taken at the
facilities to reduce enmissions prior to the
addi ti onal ERMS requirenments bei ng i nposed.

However, it should be pointed out that not

all pro-active conpliance will be credited. For
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exanple, Mbil will not be able to take credit for
pro-active steps taken on a nunmber of tank seal
upgrades conpleted prior to 1990 because of the set
1990 basel i ne.

The ERMS programwill provide flexibility
for all facilities that need to find future
reductions. Wthin Mbil's m dwest region
operations, while the refinery has achi eved sone
early reduction credits to offset part of the
pendi ng ERVS 12 percent VOM reduction, our two
termnals and pipeline facility have not.

As a result, these facilities like any
ot her affected source, can take advantage of the
conpliance flexibility provided within the program
They can curtail production, buy credits fromthe
market, or install further controls.

Finally, the programrecogni zes that
certain elenments nust exist that will allow for the
flexible operation of a facility. The program
contains such elenments that will allow the continued
flexible operation of these ERVS facilities by one,
all owi ng the purchase and transfer of long-term
anmount ATUs; two, allow ng the use of ATUs as

of fsets for purposes of New Source Review, three,
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exenpting insignificant sources; four, recognizing
the need to retain the startup and
mal f uncti on/ br eakdown provi si ons.

In closing, Mbil accepts the proposed ERVG
programas we believe it is the nost viable solution
to neeting the Clean Air Act objective of inproving
air quality while balancing the cost of conpliance.

| appreciate this opportunity to
participate in these proceedings. | wll be happy
to answer questions that pertain to this testinony.

M5. ROSEN:  Thank you. We will not be noving to
have M. Elvert's prefiled testinony entered as an
exhibit since he did read it for the record if
that's okay.

Prior to proceedi ng to answer any
questions, | want to correct one reference that M.
Marder made in his summary, and it is included in
his prefiled testinony. He cited to -- in his
summary, he cited section, let's see, 9.5 or
somet hing, 9.5(c)(3) of the Act. That should have
been 9.8(c)(3), and also on Page 11 of his prefiled
testinmony, he cites to Section 9.5, and that as well
shoul d have been Section 9.8. Thank you.

MR FEINEN: | will mark the change on Page 11
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of Exhibit 59 to reflect that the cite should be 9.8
(c) did you say?

M5. ROSEN  Yes.

MR, FEINEN: Thank you. At this tinme, | guess
we'll turn to the prefiled questions for |ERG
prepared by the Agency.

M5. SAWER: Bonnie Sawer with the Illinois
Envi ronnental Protection Agency. Good norning, M.
Marder. The questions that the Illinois
Envi ronnental Protection Agency filed are in
reference to the testinony of Sidney Marder, and the
first three questions are in reference to point 1
rai sed, and that's found on Pages 12 through 13.

The I1linois Environmental Regul atory
G oup, IERG suggests that the rule require volatile
organic material em ssion reductions first in 2000
rather than in 1999 as the proposed rule currently
requires.

Did the Septenber 15th, 1995, draft
Em ssi ons Reduction Market System ERMS, rule
referred to in your testinony provide for VOM
em ssi on reductions phased in over tinme through 2007
as a full attainment strategy?

MR MARDER: Yes, it did. I think that was
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proposed Rul e 205. 200.

M5. SAWER: Did the Septenber 15th, 1995, draft
ERVS rule referred to in your testinony include a
specific VOM enmi ssions reduction target or
percent age such as the 12 percent reduction
contai ned in the proposed rul e?

MR MARDER No, it did not. As the rule was
t hen proposed, the reducti on woul d have been
determ ned by the Agency.

M5. SAWER: Is it your understanding that the
proposed ERMS rul e requires reductions in 1999 to
meet the three percent a year rate of progress
requi renent of Section 182 (c) of the Cean Air Act
for the first three-year period, which is by 19997

MR, MARDER: It's ny understanding that the
ERMS' s rules intended to provide for a portion of
the first state of the ROP requirenents, and that
the other portions would be required fromarea and
nmobi |l e sources and would, in part, actually -- those
reductions would, in part, actually occur |ater than
the first-year period, although some portion of them
woul d be credited back to the first period.

As a general answer, this is intended --

the ERVS programis intended to neet the first
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three-year period. | do agree with that.

M5. SAWER: M. Marder, you refer to sone
reductions fromthe area and nobil e source sector
that you believe are to occur after 1999, but be
credited in 1999. Can you identify those particul ar
reductions?

MR, MARDER: M understanding fromthe
prelimnary discussions we had were that sonme of the
progranms, whether it be small engine reductions or
t he consuner product reductions that the U S EPA
may have been late in adopting or would be
i npl enented over a tinme frame woul d get inplenmented
later, but still would be credited towards the first
peri od even though because they were enacted, but
not adopted -- but not inplenented yet simlar to
the original proposal of ERMS that allowed until the
year 2000 for sone of the em ssions, but really it
was part of the first three-year period.

M5. SAWER: M. WMathur has sonme questions al so.

MR MATHUR M. Marder, is it not true that
some of these area source nmeasures that you
mentioned while being inplenmented after this rule
was in place, however, would be inplenmented by 1999

which is the date that the Agency is required to
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denonstrate its first nine percent ROP?

VMR MARDER  Sone of them woul d, and sone of
themwouldn't, and that's -- as | answered, | think
part of them would apply and sone part of them would
conme inalittle later. That's ny understandi ng of
t hem

MR MATHUR Is it not also true that in the
Agency's testinony -- excuse ne. Strike that.

Are you famliar with the exhibit in the
Agency's testinony that showed where and from what
sector the Agency was getting its nine percent ROP
reducti ons?

MR. MARDER |'ve seen that nonths and nonths
ago. | can't say I'mthoroughly famliar with it,
but I do recall the document you're tal king about.

MR MATHUR: So woul d you agree that the target
| evel s that the Agency needs neet the ROP
requirenent it needs to nmeet by 19997

MR, MARDER: |'mnot sure if | agree with that.
I think that there is a certain anount of
flexibility that allows you to have progranms in
pl ace and commitnments to make certain reductions by
certain tines, but that there is sone |latitude in

that, and one of the reasons | say that is because
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don't recall the nunbers.

I'd have to go back and review them but
the nunbers fromthe reductions that will occur by
1999, I'mnot sure if they're going to add up to the
full nine percent.

Again, |I'd have to go back and review the
docunent .

MR MATHUR: | don't have anything el se.

M5. SAWER: Ckay the next four questions that
the Illinois EPA has are in reference to point two
found at Pages 14 through 15. | ERG suggests that
the price pay for each ATU transferred be posted to
the public access bulletin Board.

I s | ERG suggesting that the price paid per
each ATU transfer be posted to the public access
bulletin Board, or are you suggesting that an
average of ATU transfer prices be posted
peri odi cal ly?

MR, MARDER: We're suggesting that the price
paid for each transfer be posted on the bulletin
Board. However, long-termtransfers would not have
to be included in that. W believe that the
short-termtransfers are akin to a spot nmarket, and

in a spot market, the prices need to be known as
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soon as possi bl e.

M5. SAWER: Is it your position that the
conpani es that are | ERG nenbers want the prices
associated with their ATU transfers posted to the
public access bulletin Board?

MR, MARDER: Well, we've obviously discussed
this, and it is not necessary that a posting of who
pays or receives what price be included on the
bulletin Board. That's not inportant, and it's not
necessary.

VWhat is inmportant is a knowl edge of the
price that's paid for an ATU.  For exanple, if |
want to buy a hundred shares of |BM stock or Mobi
stock or anybody's stock, | want to know the price
of the stock. | don't necessarily care who the
seller was and who the buyer was.

So those two issues can be di sconnect ed.
VWhat we're tal king about is as early as possible and
as soon as possible an identification of the actua
price paid. It's our feeling that's what makes a
mar ket wor K.

M5. SAWER: Do you believe in general -- do you
bel i eve conpanies in general involved in ATU

transfers will want the price associated with their
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transfer posted to the public access bulletin
Boar d?

MR MARDER: | think the sane answer. |It's not
necessary to tie the identity to the price.

M5. SAWER: The fourth question | believe
you' ve al ready answered, so we will not ask it.

The next four questions are referenced to
poi nt three found at Pages 15 through 16. [|ERG
suggests a lower price for ATUs fromthe Alternative
Conpl i ance Market Account or ACMA account.

Is it your understanding that the ACMA is
i ntended to be a secondary source of ATUs.

MR, MARDER: Yes, that is ny understanding.

M5. SAWER: Wouldn't the tradi ng aspect of the
proposed rul e be nore successful than active market
exi sts for ATUs?

VMR MARDER: Yes, it would be.

M5. SAWER: If the price of ATUs in the ACVA
are conparable to the price for ATUs in the market,
isn'"t it possible that sources will turn to the ACVA
as a first resort to |locate ATUs because it may be
consi dered a nore conveni ent source of ATUs?

MR, MARDER: Well, | think anything is possible,

but it's doubtful. If the market is efficient, that
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woul d mean that an anple supply of ATUs is available
and any difference in price just like in the

market -- the stock market, any difference in price
wi Il draw buyers to the | owest possible cost option
buyi ng those ATUs.

If the market is not efficient, we wll
need all avenues avail able and we should not be
penal i zed, in our opinion, for using an avail able
option.

M5. SAWER: | think you essentially answered
the fourth question in your answer to question two,
so | won't ask that question also.

Wel |, that concl udes our questions of the
| ERG wi t nesses.

M5. ROSEN:  Thank you.

MR, FEINEN: Are there any other questions of
the 1 ERG wi tnesses fromthe audi ence? Any
guesti ons?

M5. HENNESSEY: | have a question. Just
followi ng up on Ms. Sawyer's | ast question, whether
buyers will turn to the ACVA market versus trying to
negotiate private transactions for purchase and sale
of ATUs will depend, | guess, on the extent of the

transaction cost in negotiating a private deal
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correct?

MR, MARDER: GCenerally, that's correct.

M5. HENNESSEY: And you think the 1.1 ratio
will -- 1 guess I'mwondering won't it be easier, in
fact, to buy things fromthe Agency rather than
having to negotiate a deal privately?

MR, MARDER: Well, one would hope not. | nean,
this is -- the entire premse of this is that it's a
mar ket base system and that there's going to be a
mar ket, and there's going to be enough ATUs
available. It's -- when we discussed this with our
menber shi p, our presunption is that nost business
peopl e who realize that they are going to need a
stream of ATUs are going to enter into a long-term
contract for those ATUs, and that's not what the
ACMA is for.

So M. Starkey may go to M. Elvert and
then go into -- conme up with sonme kind of an
agreenment to buy a long-termstream \hat we're
tal king about is, if you will, the spot nmarket where
an order cones in. That is what this market is
for.

If the bulletin Board is effective, if

the -- if people know what's available, we're
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tal ki ng about 232 companies, | would think the

mar ket woul d prevail. That's just our genera
feeling. The issue becones if the market is not
ef fective, how nmuch of a penalty should we have to
pay for using an alternative?

M5. HENNESSEY: | suppose that the market price
shoul d reflect any transaction cost that --

MR, MARDER: Unh- huh, yes.

M5. HENNESSEY: -- results in private
transacti ons?

And why does | ERG not favor including price
of the long-termtransactions in the database?

MR MARDER: | don't think they're that
relevant. In the case of a long-termtransaction
there are probably going to be other considerations
i nvol ved.

In sone cases, it's going to be
i nterconpany transfers where Plant A in one area
wi || shut something down and give it or sell it to
anot her pl ant.

There are going to be so many factors and
so many different conbinations and pernutations that
we don't believe that the selling price is going to

be truly representati ve of what the next deal is
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going to |l ook like.

VWereas, the spot market is truly an
i nst ant aneous market, and in that case, you're going
to have nore representative pricing.

M5. HENNESSEY: | have a question which is
really beyond the scope of your testinony, but if
you -- |I'd invite you to commrent on it.

W' ve had one comment fromthe Anerican
Lung Association in their prefiled testinony which
they've raised the possibility that this program
doesn't adequately account for the possibility that
hot spots coul d devel op

For exanple, one source in an area may buy
up a lot of ATUs and be able to omit a lot VOV in a
particul ar area that mght present sonething
hazardous as far as an environnmental factor. |
don't know if you've had a chance to think about the
i ssue, but if you have any comment, I'd like to hear
it.

MR, MARDER: Anything is possible. 1 don't
t hi nk people are going to buy up ATUs sinply to
expand. |If people are going to expand, they would
be expanding or attenpting to expand with or w thout

t he ERVS program
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Wthout the ERVMS program if one of our
menbers or anybody wants to expand in the Chicago
area, they can do that. They can do it today. All
they have to do is go through the New Source Revi ew
provi sions and neet that.

So the em ssion levels can go up sinply by
buying at 1.3 to 1 offsets. This is an alternate
way to get to the same result. | don't think that
the existence or the |ack of existence of the ERVS
programis going to drive decisions to expand
facilities.

MS. HENNESSEY: kay. That's it. Nothing else
from ne.

MR FEINEN: 1've got a couple of questions.
guess the first one is directed to M. Marder

You stated that 9.8 topic on proportionate,
I don't want to say liability, proportionate aspect
of 9.8 it's supposed to be net in a tine frame, and
I was wondering if you had an idea of what that tine
frame was?

MR, MARDER: | think our discussions were fairly
flexible on that. That goes to a little bit of what
I was saying before. Nobody really insisted that

every year or every three year increment all of the
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sources would contribute proportionately, but rather
over the entire period fromtoday until attai nnent

i s reached, whenever that is, there would be sone
degree of proportionality.

It doesn't nean that it has to be exactly
one to one, but it nmeans that we should all, of the
regul ated and the regulators, take a hard | ook at
what can be done and what tine frames are feasible
and try to level it out over the broader tine scale.

MR, FEINEN: And, M. Starkey, excuse ne, |'m
still dealing with a cold. You were tal ki ng about
the difference between snmall capitalization and
| arge capitalization in defining the | ERG nenbership
and tal king about what is a large and small conpany,
t hat when you started tal ki ng about the
applicability of the rule and tal king, between, like
a large person and a snall person you started using
em ssi ons and tonnage.

Does t he tonnage of em ssions always run
with the capitalization, or is there sonetines when
you have a large emitter with | ow capitalization?

MR, STARKEY: Well, | think the best way to
describe that or to shed sone light on it is that

you can have a conpany that has a |large capita
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investrment with multiple plants across the country
and whereas they may be viewed as a | eadi ng

manuf acturer in the country because of their size,
the individual installation that they may have in
[Ilinois could be quite small with very limted
emi ssi ons.

The converse of that is that you coul d have
a very small operation, a nomand pop operation if
you will, that could be engaged in an activity that
results in significant em ssions.

VWhat we're saying is the differentiation
bet ween the | arge conpany and the small conpany
based upon the total assets of the facility |ooking
at their annual report is not necessarily an
i ndi cation of their em ssion rates.

VWhat we're saying is that in ternms of this
program you need to | ook at the individual source
that is subject to the em ssion requirenents, take a
| ook at their em ssions, and determine their
applicability, and what we're saying is that for
| ocations that have less than ten tons, we think
that it is not cost effective for those snal
em ssi on sources to be subject to the em ssion

control requirenents.
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MR, FEINEN: | have one | ast question for M.
Elvert to get all the panel. You tal ked about
Mobil's agreenent with the ERMS program and you' ve
used the 12 percent. | was wondering if Mbil would
still agree with an ERVS-type programif it was a
different starting point, let's say, a 14 percent
reduction off the top or a 16 point reduction
Wbul d Mobi|l still consider ERMS the best approach
versus the conmand and control nethod?

MR ELVERT: Yes, we would, but we feel froma
12 percent we feel is with the nine percent ROP that
is required and rel ative being excessive, this gives
us -- gives a facility and a corporation an idea of
| ong-term findings rather than having excessive
amounts of reduction.

MR MARDER: Can | comment on that?

MR ELVERT: Sure.

MR, MARDER: Because it's an overall |ERG policy
question. | think I'd agree with Bob that if it
were determ ned that additional reductions were
needed fromthe point source sector, we would
probably, all things being equal, opt for the ERVG
approach rather than anot her approach

That's a separate question from whet her we
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bel i eve that a higher threshold is appropriate, and
that's one of the reasons that when we work with the
Agency, they agree that revisiting the threshold
woul d be yet another full broad rul enmaking.
M5. HENNESSEY: Just to follow up on that, one
of the reasons for that is that once you have a
gi ven cap allowi ng the ERVS program all ows an
i ndi vi dual source to either control em ssions or
purchase ATUs and use whatever is the | owest cost
nmet hod, and the traditional control and command --
command and control regul ation doesn't allow that?
MR, MARDER: Well, the reason for requesting thr
full rulemaking to go from 12 percent to 12 plus,
assune plus X rather than mnus X is really
t wof ol d.

Nunber one is to test the thesis against
the requirenents of Section 9.8 of the Act to see if
proportionality is really there, and, quite frankly,
this is easy. | nmean, if I"'min ny friend
M. Mathur's chair and | have to nmake additi onal
reductions and I have to either go fight with the
aut onobi | e conmpani es or fight with the coating
conpanies or sinply say let's go to 20 percent, |I'm

going to go to 20 percent.
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So it's an easy -- it may be
a preferable way for us to conply, but it's also
awful easy to just sinply up the nunber, and we
think there has to be a certain anount of
protection, and | think the Agency agreed, and
that's why there is a limt.

MR FEINEN: If there's no other questions, |
want to take a 15 m nute break.

M5. ROSEN:  So is our panel conplete?

MR FEI NEN:  Yes.

M5. ROSEN:  Thank you.

MR FEINEN: 1'mgoing to dismss the | ERG
panel , and they can go hone, disappear, stay around,
do what they want, but we're not going to call them
back so if you have any questions. Ckay.

M5. ROSEN:  Thank you.

MR, FEINEN: Thank you very nuch for waiting
this morning. |'msorry about that.

(Break taken.)

MR, FEINEN. Back on record.

I know the hearing officer order had |isted
the ERVS Coalition to start next after 1ERG but I'm
going to switch that around and | eave ERMS for this

afternoon and have M. Cobb from Jefferson Smurfit
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testify.
He prefiled his testinmony on April 4. Wth
that, I guess we'll have the witness sworn in.

MR COBB: Could you swear both of us?

MR FEINEN: Ch. Could you introduce
your sel ves?

MR COBB: kay. |'m Roy Cobb, and this is Al
Chiaruttini who is environnmental manager for our
folding carton division, and | was going to present
an abbreviated formof nmy testinony, and then Al
will be here to hel p ne answer any questions that
the Board or others m ght have.

MR, FEINEN: Ckay. Well, let's swear both of
you in so when you answer, you're telling the truth
and all that.

(Wtnesses sworn.)
VWHEREUPON:
ROY C. C O B B, JR
ALBERT W CHI ARUTTI NI
called as witnesses herein, having been first duly
sworn, deposeth and saith as foll ows:

MR COBB: M name is Roy Cobb. [|'mthe senior

envi ronnental counsel for Jefferson Snurfit

Corporation. | work for the corporate environnenta
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affairs departnent, and | assist our plants
t hr oughout the country in conmplying with
envi ronnent al requirenents.

Jefferson Snurfit is one of the |argest
paper board packagi ng conpanies in the United States
and the largest recycler of waste paper. W have
over 150 facilities scattered throughout the United
States. W have 17 facilities in Illinois with over
2400 enpl oyees. W have three facilities in the
Chi cago area that will be participating sources
under the ERMS program

These are a folding carton plant that is
| ocated in Carol Stream Illinois. Folding cartons
are the -- typically, the type of carton you would
see in a grocery store or other retail establishnent

such as soap boxes, cereal boxes, containers such as

t hat .

We have a flexible packaging plant that's
| ocated in Schaunmburg. It produces flexible
packages of various material. One of the big things

that we're involved in a few years back was maki ng
the MREs for operation Desert Storm That's the
type of product that they produce, and then we have

a paper label plant in St. Charles, Illinois, that
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produces paper |abels for bottles and vari ous
applications.

Al'l of our plants produce to custoner
order. W don't decide on a product and then
produce it and try to sell it. Basically, we have
to be able to conpete for orders for specific
product and be able to produce it on a conpetitive
basis and within the tine requirenents of the
customer, especially with respect to our flexible
packagi ng plant and our folding carton plant.

There is a great variety in terns of the
conpl exity and sophistication of the products that
we produce. Cenerally speaking, and, you know, any
generalization is, you know, not universally true,
t he nore sophisticated the product, the higher the
val ue added, the higher the revenue fromt hat
product and al so because of the sophisticated
demands typically the higher anbunt of VOMthat we
have to use in producing the product.

There is sone very sinple boxes that don't
requi re any special coating and require very limted
printing that can be produced with little or no
VOM On the nore or |ess opposite extreme, if

you're |l ooking at folded cartons, it would be a soap
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box, which because it has to be able to neet
customer specifications and in-use requirements. In
particular, it has to have multiple barriers so that
wat er vapor doesn't penetrate the box even if it
spends a long period of tinme in a |laundry room or

ot her environment where it's exposed to humid air
and heat al so conbined with the fact that typically
you want graphics that have, you know, fl uorescent
col ors and other such features and al so have to have
certain -- nmeet certain requirements in terns of the
gl ossi ness of the surface, whether it will slip if
it's stacked, other requirenents.

Such cartons as that require a very high
anmount of VOMto produce. So that's the anount of
VOM used and therefore enmitted at our facilities
depends very much upon the product m x, which, in
turn, is custoner driven. Qur preference, sinply
because of the nature of the marketplace, typically,
is to get the high-end range of business, which, in
turn, neans nore VOM used and emtted.

Qovi ously, you know, we're conpeting with
other facilities, and we nmay or may not get as much
of that business as we would like. So based upon

busi ness conditions, our VOM em ssions will vary.
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Because of the nature of our business, we
feel that it's very inportant that whatever
regul ati ons are adopted provide the nmaxi mum
flexibility for businesses such as ours to
accommodat e custoner demand because we don't have
the flexibility, for exanple, of telling a custoner
that we'll produce soap boxes for them Cctober
t hrough April, but, you know, May through Septenber
they have to get them from soneone el se

So we have to be able to respond with a
product the customer wants when the custoner wants
it or else we're not going to get the orders, and so
we feel that if we have to forgo the high end of our
busi ness for any portion of a year, this will have a
very definite effect on the viability of our
facilities in the Chicago area.

So in ny testinony, | touched upon four
areas in the prefiled testinony of where | felt that
in order to protect a business such as ours from
undue injury and also to conply with the
requi renents of Section 9.8 of the Illinois
Envi ronnental Protection Act, that there needed to
be flexibility in four areas.

The first of these relates to the proposa
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that the baseline would be determ ned by averagi ng
two years in the period 1994 to 1996. W believe
that the Board shoul d provide the maxi mum
flexibility and choice of baseline and all ow
facilities to choose years between 1990 and 1997,
that being the overall w ndow that the Agency has
sel ected without a special showing that the years
1994 to 1996 were unrepresentative or that years
out side that three-year w ndow were nore
representative

We think that would involve the Agency in
maki ng basically business determ nations relating to
what is representative for a particul ar business.
One of the things that was suggested was that if you
had had a hi gh busi ness demand in an earlier period
and you didn't have it now, you would have to nake
some sort of denonstration that you expected the
demand to return. That's really a business decision
that we don't think is sonmething that the
Envi ronnental Protection Agency woul d be
particularly expert at, and that is, for exanple,
somet hing that would affect, | think, our folding
carton plant, which due to business conditions in,

think, '92, '93 were operating seven days a week.
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Now, we're operating five days or slightly
| ess a week. That has a big inpact on what the
em ssions are, and we don't think any decision
shoul d be nmade that, in effect, said well, now that
you're going to five days, there's going to be sone
special hurdle that we to have overcone in order to
go back to a higher rate of production

The second area that we felt there needed
to be flexibility and this -- it's -- | wouldn't say
that this is foreclosed in the current proposal is
that especially since in the years before just the
last few facilities by and |arge were not tracking
VOM emi ssions on a seasonal basis, that facilities
be all owed to denonstrate what their seasona
em ssi ons were by use of reasonable estimation
techni ques so they would still have to denonstrate
what its em ssions were during the ozone season, but
that there be at | east some flexibility for that to
be done by neasures other than actually having
directly neasured the VOM em ssions during the ozone
season.

The third area and, as we read it, we think
t he Agency's proposal does take this into account is

t he provision excluding fromthe required 12 percent
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reduction existing em ssion units that have best
avai | abl e control technology, and it would be our
under st andi ng that best avail able control technol ogy
coul d include use of |ow VOM materials and not
necessarily add on control technol ogy.

So that is an area that we think is
addressed in the | EPA proposal and we think that
that is an inmportant feature of it.

The fourth provision is that full credit be
given for prior voluntary reductions. Here again,

t he Agency has provided for this. | have nmerely
noted, and I'm not a student of Section 9.8 or its
history that the Act doesn't say anything about a
1990 cutoff in ternms of allowi ng for voluntary
reductions, and that is in the Agency proposal, and
| understand the reason why it's there, and we're
not objecting to -- you know, our conpany is not
objecting to the 1999 cutoff. That was just an

i ssue that | raised.

Anyway, that was -- there's -- ny prefiled
testinmony then added sone additional |anguage
i nscription about why we feel that this flexibility
is needed, but I think that would conclude ny ora

testinmony this norning.
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MR, FEI NEN: Before we nove on, | have a couple
of questions. On your prefiled testinmony, if you
could l ook at the copy that you're going to enter in
as an exhibit?

MR COBB: Yes.

MR, FEI NEN:  You have bol ded point one, which
reads the final ERMS rul e adopted by the Board
shoul d al  ow t he maxi mum possible flexibility in
sel ection of baseline.

MR COBB: Yes.

MR, FEINEN: And then a point two cones |ater
on, |like, on page --

MR COBB: Right.

MR, FEINEN: Were is that at? Page 12 near the
end, and then | had a Page 13 at the end. |Is that
all? There's no -- there's no point four -- three
or four to go along with the other things you' ve
mentioned this norning?

MR COBB: No. As | had indicated when | tal ked
with you, I was -- you know, the tinme was limted,
and there were four points we nade. | was saying
that | thought the Agency had addressed points three
and four, so | omtted that fromthe subsequent.

MR, FEINEN: But you do nention that was on Page
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4 of the prefiled testinony?

MR COBB: Yes.

MR, FEINEN: Ckay. | just wanted to make sure
have it.

MR, COBB: No, no. You've got the conplete --

MR, FEINEN: Why don't you hand me that, and
["1l mark it as Exhibit No. 62?

MR COBB: kay.

MR FEINEN: |'mmarking as Exhibit No. 62 the
prefiled testinmony of M. Cobb from Jefferson
Smurfit, which is dated April 4.

If there is no objections, I'll enter that
into the record. Seeing none, I'll enter that as
Exhi bit No. 62.

I"mgoing to open the floor up to
guestioning. |Is there any questions fromthe
partici pants?

(Hearing Exhibit No. 62
mar ked for identification,
4-21-97.)

M5. SAWER W have sone -- the Illinois
Envi ronnental Protection Agency has sone prefiled
qguestions from M. Cobb's testinmony. 1It's on Page

10 of our prefiled questions.
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MR FEINEN: Ckay. I'msorry | mssed that. |
just got a little -- we'll start with the Agency's
qgquestions. Sorry about that.

MS. SAWER:  Question nunber one, does Jefferson
Smurfit Corporation currently incorporate the cost
of compliance with environmental requirenents in the
price of its products?

MR, COBB: The answer to that is yes. W have
to incorporate all of our costs in how we price our
products.

M5. SAWER  Since the answer to nunber one is
yes, would Jefferson Smurfit be forced to increase
its price to cover the cost of conplying with the
command and control rule as an alternative to the
proposed ERMS rul e?

MR COBB: It would depend, as | said, whatever,
whet her it's command and control or ERM5, we'll have
to incorporate whatever the cost of control is.

In order to determ ne the inpact of comrand
and control versus ERM5, it would really be
necessary to know t he specifics of the command and
control rule, and the one reason for that, and
mean, it's sonmething that it's possible under the

ERMS proposal, but it's unclear if you actually go
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t hrough the baseline setting process, is that if the
command and control rule were adopted, for exanple,
that established a |level of control that while it
was significantly higher than what the current RACT
requires is sonmething that you could nmeet with your
exi sting control equipnent or with mnor

nodi fications thereto you mi ght not have any
addi ti onal costs.

So it would -- you'd really have to know
what the conmmand and control rule was that you were
| ooki ng at.

M5. SAWER: Is it your understandi ng that under
the current proposed ERMS rule if your control |evel
is currently above what is required by rul es that
you woul d receive credit for that in your baseline
cal cul ati on?

MR COBB: It's -- there is a provision for
that. 1t's not clear to ne how that will be
applied, and, in particular, like, for exanple,
packagi ng work reviewer such as we have at Caro
Stream the current requirenent is a 65 percent
overal | reduction.

It's not that clear to me that, let's say,

if you tested and you' ve shown 85 percent whet her
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you get full credit for that or whether the Agency
would, in fact, say that well, in order to neet 65,
you woul d need to have net sone nunber better than
thi s anyway.

So | don't know as to exactly how that's
going to be applied in practice as to how nmuch
credit you're going to get under ERMS for over
control

M5. SAWER: But there is a provision that
allows for that?

MR COBB: Yes.

M5. SAWER: | just have one nore follow up on
that. |If there was a command and control rule in
pl ace that required Jefferson Snurfit to reduce
em ssions below current levels, is it likely that
the cost of conpliance with that rule would be
included in the cost of -- the price of your
pr oduct s?

MR COBB: Like | said, any -- whatever the
nature of the rule, if there's a conpliance cost,

t hat does have to be incorporated.

Could M. Chiaruttini add sonethi ng?

MR CHIARUTTINI: 1'd like to add sonething to

what Roy said. It would be included in our cost
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structure, neaning in how we start to estimate. It
does not necessarily mean that is recoverable.

W conpete across the nation w th other
printers that make boxes, and we may be, in fact,
conpeting with sonebody in Georgia or M ssissippi
So that's what's going to drive the final price at
whi ch we take the business, and in many tines,
contracts are for multiple years. So while it is a
conmponent of a fixed cost, it's not necessarily
recover abl e.

M5. SAWER: Are you aware that the tradi ng of
ATUs is not limted to the reconciliation period,
but can occur at any tine during the year?

MR COBB: Yes.

Did you have a followup to that?

MB. SAWER:  Well...

MR COBB: | was assuming that that was directed
at -- | nmean, to help you out, that that was
directed to where | was tal king about the

uncertainty and about the problens that it presented

for business, and | still think it would be true
that -- | mean, obviously, if you know going into an
ozone season that you need nore ATUs, well, you

know, you would try and act as soon as possible, but
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once you're into the season and an order cones in,
you know, you could well -- there would be that
uncertainty as to whether you're actually going to
get through wi thout needing nore ATUs and so
effectively at least in some circunstances | think
you would be either late in the ozone season or into
the reconciliation period before you really knew
whet her or not you needed ATUs, and that's assuni ng
that it's totally straightforward because we do have
facilities in the South Coast, and I know wi th one
of the ones there, we ran into probl enms where
actually we had rel eased a | arge nunber of ATUs and
then the Agency decided that they didn't agree with
the way that we had determ ned what our, you know, X
em ssions were and so then retroactively, in fact,
it was after the reconciliation period, we had a
very large deficit that we had to nake up

Could M. Chiaruttini follow up?

MR CH ARUTTINI: 1'd like to add a comment to
that. In the structure of how we run our business
and how our custoners run their business and very
often the majority of our customers are
consumer-driven. Going into the ozone season, we

can't necessarily prepare, especially in the current
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year, let alone future years.

If P& Gor Leiber Brothers, for exanple,
decides to make a nore concentrated powdered soap
they' Il reduce the size of the container or they'l
go the other way, which may lead to nore printing,
which results in nore em ssions for us.

So in addition to that, contracts conme and
go and we cannot plan for them because we don't know
what the customer's business is going to be, and in
the case where they're going to reduce the boxes,
that's a doubl e-edge sword in that they will fill
their existing pipelines so that they can shift
their machinery to the new sizes and so that there's
no loss in them providing market to the marketpl ace,
and in that, our em ssions would go up sinply
because we'll fill their pipeline then go to
practically zero, and in that setting and in that
case, we would run seven to eight continuous, and
then we'd go back maybe even to three or four days a
week.

M5. SAWER: M. Kanerva fromthe Agency has a
foll ow up questi on.
MR, KANERVA: M. Cobb or either one of you for

that matter, you nentioned the South Coast program
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and the situation you ran into there. There's an
i nportant difference about how the ERMS systemi s
set up in that it allow banking or carrying over
unused ATUs from one season to anot her.

Isn't that provision sonething you could
use to help manage this variability in your
production | evel ?

MR COBB: Assumi ng that, you know, the -- your
| evel of em ssions conpared to your baseline was
such that you have a surplus of ATUs, yes, you could
stockpile them and | think one of the uncertainties
that exist, you know, hopefully if this programis
adopted, you know, five years from now buyi ng ATUs
will be such a normal thing that some of the
concerns woul dn't exist.

It, in part, tiesinwth M. Mrder's
testinmony. 1In other words, if you' ve got a good
efficient narket, there are a | ot of ATUs out there,
it could be that some of these problens, you know,
will go away or won't exist, but if that's not the
case, then, you know, there will be all these
uncertainties, but yes, that's sort of going beyond
your thing that insofar as you have a surplus of

ATUs, you can at |east, you know, apply themtoward
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the foll owi ng year.

MR, KANERVA: One nore followup on that. Roger
Kanerva again. Again, getting back to this point of
certainty, this systemallows you to achi eve a
reasonabl e or workable | evel of certainty by the way
you manage those em ssions fromyear to year, and,
per haps, make sure you do have bank em ssions to
fall back on; is that correct?

MR COBB: | don't -- | guess | wouldn't think
that you get certainty fromthat. GCbviously, your
goal will be to try and make sure that, you know --
wel I, obviously, you' ve got to, you know, always
have enough ATUs to cover your em ssions, but in
some -- assumng that, for exanple, a conmand and
control way were reasonable in nature, you' ve got a
set of paraneters that you have to neet.

If you neet those, whatever it is, like,
let's say, there's a certain percent reduction
requi red, then you know you're in conpliance. You
don't also have to worry then about, you know, can
we accept another order of detergent cartons or wll
that, you know, put us over our ATUs.

So while I think you' re always going to

strive to have the ATUs you need, | don't know t hat
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it would be nore certain than sone ot her nethod.

M5. SAWER: Let nme ask the final prefiled
qguestion. Then we m ght have one nore foll ow up or
so.

Is it your belief that the market system
proposed in the ERVS rul e woul d depress the Chi cago
area econony to a greater or |esser extent than a
command and control rule intended to achieve the
sanme | evel of reduction in VOM em ssions?

MR COBB: And I'mnot an economi st, so this
woul d just be, you know, nmy own conmon sense view of
things. 1| don't know that you can necessarily
answer that in the abstract w thout know ng, you
know, what conmand and control regulations mght be
required to achieve a simlar reduction, and al so
there woul d be sonme assunptions, | think, that would
conme into play as to how good a market there's going
to be in ATUs. So | don't know.

Could M. Chiaruttini give his opinion?

MB. SAWER: Sure.

MR CHIARUTTINI: | can give you ny opinion
Again, it's alittle difficult to answer in the
abstract, but fromthe comments | nade earlier and

approaching it nore from a business point of view
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than fromthe regulatory or |egal point of view ny
views are absolutely it's going to inpact in a
negative way in the Chicago area.

From a busi nessman's standpoint and that is
to how we manufacture and the custoners we serve, if
we're to expand here, the uncertainty of the rules
and what we have to do and what we have to pay in
order to run a custoner's business would in al
i kelihood | ead us to go el sewhere.

If we are to build a new facility in this
area, it would be nmy view that we would not do
that. Wth the ERVS type of rule where we woul d
have to go out and either seek |ong-term ATUs or get
them on a year-by-year basis because of the -- just
in the nature we run our business.

If we're producing widgets, that's a little
bit of a different story, but those are ny views
from a busi ness standpoi nt, absolutely negative
i mpact .

M5, SAWER: And it's your position then that
t he negative inpact would be greater than requiring
Jefferson Snurfit to conply with a command and
control type rule even if that rule, perhaps, had a

hi gher cost of control associated with it totally?
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MR CHIARUTTINI: | can speak for today with the
command and control. | can't speak for what our
busi ness levels -- how nuch I'll have to pay for

tomorrow, and there lies the problemfor us, for
what we do.

MR, KANERVA: Roger Kanerva. You heard the
earlier testinmony by the person fromMbil that this
rule and this systemgave themcertainty and, in
fact, there was sonme discussion in that testinony
about entering into | ong-term arrangenents wth
peopl e, and you just nentioned it yourself.

VWhat is it about your business that would
cause Jefferson Snurfit to want to not pursue a
| ong-term arrangenment and to | eave thensel ves
vul nerabl e year to year?

MR CH ARUTTINI:  Why woul d we pursue a
| ong-term arrangenment when we woul d probably have to
pay for that |ong-term arrangenent because the other
side is offering things for sale, and there is no
incentive for us we may not need themin terns of
ATUs?

MR COBB: | guess there's a double uncertainty
here and that is that until the baseline is known

and there are a nunber of things provided in the
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rule that, you know, will possibly aneliorate the
things we're raising and that's the -- you know, how
the credit VACT will be determined, the credit
you're given for voluntary over conpliance in the
past .

It might well be that, you know, once we've
wor ked out a baseline for our facilities that you
al |l have given us enough credits for those things
that at least at the 12 percent |evel they won't be
a problem

| mean, | don't think we know at this point
that that's possible. So | really think there's a
very large uncertainty until the baseline has been
determned for a facility use as to how much of a
problem a 12 percent reduction from sonething that
you' ve al ready denonstrated within the recent past
t hat you' ve done how much of a hardship that m ght
i mpose.

M5. SAWER: | just have a question for
clarification of your point two on Page 12 of your
prefiled testinony.

MR COBB: Onh, okay. Yes.

M5. SAWER  Point two reads the final ERVS rule

adopted by the Board should all ow the maxi mum
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possible flexibility for a facility to quantify its
seasonal VOM enissions for its selected baseline
years by appropriate estinmation techniques, and then
it says actual seasonal em ssions date should not be
required.

On the next page, 13, there's a phrase that
reads the final rule should allow the use of
reasonabl e estimation techni ques to determ ne VOM
emi ssi ons.

Are you referring to baseline em ssions in
both i nstances?

MR COBB: Yes.

M5. SAWER: Are you aware that the rul e does
not specify the techniques that a facility can use
to establish its baseline em ssions to allow for
such flexibility?

MR, COBB: Yes, and there was -- | guess to ne
there was concern relating to, | think, it says
accurate, you know, seasonal data or sonething like
t hat about whether that didn't inply some sort of
measur enent, you know, contenporaneous with the
season, and | didn't have, you know, sonething
specific in mnd in terms of a suggestion, just that

there should be flexibility to all ow the Agency and
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the source to agree on what the seasonal em ssions
were for a year w thout having actual, you know,
measured data during the nmonths in question.

M5. SAWER: Thank you.

MR, FEI NEN: Any ot her questions fromthe
audi ence? Any questions fromthe Board?

MS. HENNESSEY: Just one question. Your first
poi nt was that years -- any year between 1990 and

1997, any two years within that tine period, should

be avail able to be used as the baseline determ nation?

MR COBB: W're saying fromthe standpoint of
busi ness flexibility, that's definitely what we
woul d prefer, yes, m'am

MS. HENNESSEY: Have you discussed that with the

Agency?

MR COBB: It's -- let's say | think that that
has conme up when the Agency had neetings with, |ike,
t he Chicago Chanber, and I, you know, am aware of,

you know, their position. W haven't had direct
face-to-face negotiations as a conpany.

MS. HENNESSEY: Thank you.

MR FEINEN: | just have a couple of requests.
M. Cobb, can you just give us a little bit of your

pr of essi onal background and then, M. Chiaruttini,
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if you could --

MR COBB: Onh, okay.

MR FEINEN: -- give us a little bit of your
pr of essi onal background so we just have a basis on
what your opinion is based?

MR COBB: kay. | graduated from New York
Uni versity Law School in 1968. | have been invol ved
with issues relating to environnental matters
actual ly goi ng back to 1969.

(Enter M. Edwi n Hurl ey)

MR COBB: | was with Republic Steel Corporation
1977 to '80. 1've been with Container Corporation
of Anerica and now Jefferson Snurfit Corporation
since 1980. |'ve been involved assisting all of our
facilities in conplying with environnental
regul ati ons both at Republic and at CCA JSC.

I's there nore?

MR, FEI NEN: \What ever you feel is appropriate.
| mean -- okay.

VWhat position are you currently with with
Jefferson Snmurfit?

MR COBB: M title is Senior Environnental

Counsel .

MR, FEI NEN.  Thank you.
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MR CH ARUTTINI: 1've been with the conpany for
26 years, and currently I'mthe environnmenta
manager for the folding carton division, which is 18
facilities across ten states, and | either do or
assist -- or assist outside contractors and
attorneys that we retain in order to do all the
various aspects of conpliance and pernmit subm ssion
and all the negotiations that goes along with that.

I'"ma graduate of DePaul University here in

Chi cago, although I'mcurrently headquartered in
Pennsyl vania, and in the course of ny career, |'ve
hel d various positions nostly in the |ine managenent
control and in production on the floor

MR, FEINEN: Thank you. | see that M. Hurley
has joined us here. Sorry about sw tching the
testinmony. Do you have any testinmony you want to
provi de today?

MR, HURLEY: No.

MR, FEINEN: You're just --

MR, HURLEY: No.

MR, FEINEN: Ckay. | have one question then for
whoever, M. Cobb or Chiaruttini. You tal ked about
how in considering this flexibility your concern

t hat possibly the Agency doesn't have the expertise
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to make the determ nation of what is representative
of your em ssions, and I'mkind of putting the Board
up for ridicule, but if that determ nation was
appeal able to the Board, would you feel any nore
confortable with the way that the systemis set up?
MR COBB: Well, | really haven't contenpl ated
t he appeal process. | do think that there is a
problem In other words, there's a clear case, you
know, that when Chris Romai ne was giving his
testinmony and that is, you know, your plant blows up
or somet hing and so you have a year where you're
rebuilding it, well, there's no question that that's
unrepresentative and the Agency woul d throw that
year out.

But when you get into questions of, you
know, whet her business conditions are representative
and what that neans, |'mnot sure that that's
sonet hing that either the Agency or the Board is
really equipped to handle, and that it would be
really better to, you know, word the regul ation so
that wasn't the issue that had to be deci ded by
ei ther the Agency or the Board.

MR, FEI NEN:  You woul dn't happen to have any

i deas how -- what you woul d consider representative
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of one business versus another business? That m ght
be varied, wouldn't it?

MR COBB: Right, |I think so.

MR, FEINEN: So what you might think is
representative for the year m ght not be in soneone
el se's m nd?

MR COBB: Right, and that's part of the concern
is that we would basically have to try and persuade
Chris and the Agency that our view of what was
representati ve was one that they should adopt.

MR, FEINEN: Thank you. | don't have any
further questions. | think then we'll break for
lunch for an hour and excuse the witnesses. | don't
think we'll call you back the rest of the tinme, so
you're free to stay or go. Let's break for lunch
for an hour.

(Wher eupon, further proceedi ngs
wer e adj ourned pursuant to the
[ unch break and reconvened
at 1:00 o' clock as follows.)

MR FEINEN. Back on the record.

Before we start this afternoon with the
ERMVS Coalition's prefiled testinony and testinony

fromthe witnesses, there was a notion that was
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filed by ERVM5. | guess I'lIl leave it to you guys to
expl ai n what vyour. ..

MR SAINES: Well, we filed prefiled testinony.
In response, the Agency has filed prefiled
guestions, a group of which have been repeated for
each individual Coalition nmenber the sanme questions
that are contained originally as questions one
through six with respect to Allied Tube & Conduit's
guestions, the questions that pertain to ozone
transport, and we have an agreed notion to respond
to those questions in witing once on behalf of the
ERMS Coal ition, which we've subnmitted to the Board
t hi s norning.

MR, FEINEN: You said agreed notion?

MR SAINES: Correct.

MR, FEINEN: The Agency agreed to the witten
answers?

M5. SAWER: Well, we agreed that they -- we
woul dn't object to themfiling witten answers, but
we still think it's appropriate to ask questions to
i ndi vidual Coalition nmenbers that have presented
testinmony on a particul ar subject.

MR, FEINEN: Right, but does that nean you're

going to ask the questions you prefiled that
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reappear for each testifier?

M5. SAWER: | don't think we intend to testify
necessarily and ask each prefiled or all of the
guestions, but as they testify to this matter, we,
you know, may need to ask sonme questions to each of
t hem

I mean, the reason we filed the questions
to each of themwe filed to each nenber of the
Coalition that presented that testinony.

MR FEINEN: Right, and the answers supplied in
the witten are not satisfactory or are
sati sfactory, or do you feel that if I grant this
motion, you're still going to ask the sanme questions
to each witness, and if | deny the notion, are you
going to ask the questions? | just want to know
what the Agency is going to do based on this.

M5. SAWER  Yeah. In sonme instances, we find
that the answers are not responsive.

MR SAINES: Well, on behalf of the coalition, |
woul d say that we have done this process by allow ng
the Agency to file witten responses to certain
guestions we've asked, and if they feel the need to
ask foll owup questions because they don't feel the

answers have adequately -- the questions have been
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adequately addressed, | believe the process all ows
for people to ask foll ow up questions.

MR FEINEN: | guess I'mconfronted with the
i ssue of | grant the notion, but I don't think I'm
granting anythi ng because they're going to ask
qguestions in foll ow up anyway.

So why don't we just deny the notion and
when they ask this question, you can read themthe
answer, and if they want nore, then we'll go that
route.

Hopeful |l y, the Agency cannot ask the sanme
guestion over and over and over and they can pare it
down a little bit and save ourselves sone tine.

["lI'l hang onto this.

So with that, why don't we begin with your
presentation testinony?

MR SAINES: Ckay. |I'm Richard Saines, an
attorney for Gardner, Carton & Dougl as, representing
the ERVS Coalition along with nmy co-counsel, Tracey
M helic.

Today, we're going to be presenting
testinmony first from James Skalon of Allied Tube &
Conduit Corporation and then from Ral ph Fasano from

VWhite Cap Incorporated. | believe is there a
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statenment --

M5. MHELIC W would just like to nake a
statenent for the record that the ERVS Coalition
menbers, several have nmet with the Agency on severa
occasions. Several of the menbers have net with
themto discuss the inplementation of these rules
and cal cul ati ng the baseli nes.

They have reached sonme agreenments as to the
nmet hodol ogi es of cal cul ati ons, have reached no
agreements -- | want to clarify for the record
have -- we've reached no agreenents as to the
speci fic baseline em ssion cal culation or any of the
nunbers presented in any of the testinonies, and
we're going to begin today with the presentation of
James Skalon's summary of his prefiled testinony,
and once we conplete it, we'll be entering as an
exhibit his actual prefiled testinony.

MR, FEINEN: Why don't we swear in both the
wi tnesses? Wio is the other w tness today?

M5. M HELIC  Ral ph Fasano from Wite Cap
I ncor por at ed.

MR, FEINEN: Why don't we swear both the

w tnesses in, and we'll start with M. Skal on then?
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(Wtnesses sworn.)
VWHEREUPON:

JAMES C. SKALON

RALPH L. FASANDO
called as witnesses herein, having been first duly
sworn, deposeth and saith as foll ows:

MR, SKALON: Good afternoon, everyone. M nane
is Janes C. Skalon. |1'mthe environnental engineer
for Allied Tube & Conduit Corporation, and we're
| ocated in Harvey, Illinois.

Al li ed Tube manufacturers gal vani zed st eel
tube, and conduit for use of electrica
installations, fencing, liquid transport systens,
and sprinkler systenms. Allied Tube installed a new
mll in 1994, which enmits less than 25 tons per year
of VOM and we are now in the process of installing
an additional mll this year

The new mll will emt nore than 25 tons
per year of VOM em ssions. Wth the installation of
the new mll, Allied Tube triggered the application
of Illinois'" New Source Review rules. Consequently,
inits construction permt, the Agency required
Allied Tube to denonstrate that it had offset the

em ssions fromthe newml|l at a ratio of 1.3 to 1
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Al'lied Tube had sufficient reductions in
em ssions in the last five years to offset the new
emi ssions at a ratio of 1.3 to 1. Nonetheless,

Al lied Tube opposed offsetting these em ssions at a
ratio of 1.3 to 1 because under the Clean Air Act
amendnents of 1990, Allied Tube could have netted
out of NSR applicability.

Pursuant to the statutory |anguage, Allied
woul d not have had to offset em ssions fromthe new
mll at aratioof 1.3 to 1. It is Allied's
understanding that it was not the Agency's intention
to enact nore stringent New Source Review
regul ations than the Clean Air Act rules, but to
reflect the Cean Air Act requirenents.

Along with Wiite Cap, it is ny
under st andi ng that the Agency will be proposing
changes to Illinois regulations to be consistent
with the Clean Air Act netting requirenents. Based
upon this understanding, Allied will be able to net
out of New Source Review, not be required to of fset
emi ssions at a ratio of 1.3 to 1, and will be able
to incorporate the reductions not used in the
netting exercise in its ERVS baseline.

In agreenent with other Coalition nenbers
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presenting testinmony tonorrow, | believe that if
these rul es are adopted, both the Agency and the
Board are electing the easy way out of a difficult
di | emma.

Pl aci ng a di sproportionate share of the
burden on industry, which has al ready been
significantly regulated to reduce eni ssions rather
than direct its attention to other potential sources
of em ssions, the Agency is relying upon the United
States Environnmental Protection Agency to inplenent
restrictions on other sources, which, as we have al
experi enced, could take several years.

In the nmeantine, the Agency is continuing
to extract reductions fromthe sane sources which
have al ready reduced em ssions beyond their
proportionate share.

Al lied thanks the Board for the opportunity
to testify at this hearing and requests that the
Board consider the issues raised by the Coalition
bef ore adopti ng these rul es.

MR, FEI NEN: Thank you, M. Skalon. kay.
W' Il have testinony fromM. Fasano, and then we'll
open it up for questions fromthe Agency if that's

okay.
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MB. SAWER  Ckay.

MR, FEINEN: No, no. W' Il have the testinony.
Then we'll do questi ons.

MB. SAWER  Ch, okay.

MR, FASANO. My nane is Ral ph Fasano. | amthe
manager of environnental affairs for Wite Cap
Incorporated. White Cap manufactures netal closures
or caps for food and beverages packed in glass such
as baby food, pickles, and fruit drinks.

VWite Cap has been operating in Chicago for
71 years. \White Cap currently operates ten coating
lines, two of which are new and have permanent tota
encl osures. In 1994, White Cap voluntarily enbarked
upon a programto upgrade and replace all of our
existing lines with permanently totally encl osed
lines as well as upgrade or replace our current
oxi di zers.

This program has and will continue to
dramatically decrease VOM eni ssions in the Chicago
area. Wen this programis conplete, we anticipate
it wll reduce emssions fromits facility -- from
our facility by over 300 tons per year

VWite Cap has nmet with the Agency for

several years regarding maintaining credit for
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em ssion reductions resulting fromthis repl acenent
program During these neetings, the Agency
consistently represented that Wiite Cap woul d not

| ose any credits for voluntarily reduci ng em ssions
before 1996 or before the adoption of the ERVB

rul es.

Based upon the Agency's assurances, we have
al ready replaced four lines with two permanently
totally enclosed lines, and replaced four catalytic
oxi di zers with one ABB regenerative thermal
oxi di zer.

The regenerative thermal oxidizer achieves
a destruction efficiency between 98 percent and 99
percent. W will be replacing at | east two nore
lines with one new permanently totally enclosed |line
this year.

By the end of 1998, we intend to repl ace
the remaining six old coating lines with new
permanently totally enclosed |ines.

VWite Cap has three primary concerns with
this rule; one, limting representative years to
1994 t hrough '96; two, how the Agency will calculate
VWhite Cap's baseline; and three, the inpact of the

I11inois New Source Review rules on the ERVB
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basel i nes.

First, Wite Cap agrees wth other
testinmony being presented that the years upon which
the source's baseline is cal cul ated should not be
l[limted to 1994 through 1996. As di scussed and
agreed by the Agency, 1995 and '96 are not
representative of typical production throughput and
VOM em ssions fromWite Cap during the ozone
season.

In 1995, Wiite Cap encountered a union
| ockout, which resulted in our having to send
production outside to other sources. In 1996, we
experienced the effects of the replacenent program
the renoval of four lines and the installing of two
new | i nes.

Al t hough Wiite Cap believes we should be
all owed to use any year from 1990 forward, based
upon the current |anguage of the proposed rules, the
Agency has agreed that White Cap may substitute
em ssions during 1993 for the proposed -- for the
pur pose of cal cul ati ng our baseli ne.

Qur second concern is how the Agency wil |l
cal cul ate our baseline. During 1993 and 1994, Wiite

Cap operated 12 litho process production |ines
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controll ed by seven catal ytic oxidizers. Em ssions
fromthese lines is a product of the ambunt of VOM
in each of the coatings and the overall control
efficiency of the oxidizers.

Overall control efficiency is a product of
destruction efficiency of the control unit or
oxi di zer and the capture efficiency of the |ine.
The destruction efficiencies of the oxidizers are
known val ues since we conducted destruction
efficiency testing on all of the oxidizers in
January of 1992 and again in 1994 on two oxidi zers
that we nodernized, C and A units.

The capture efficiency of these |ines,
however, is unknown. The U. S EPA, the Agency, and
the Board have agreed in past actions that it was
not feasible for White Cap to denonstrate conpliance
using the capture efficiency test methods previously
set forth in Illinois" rules.

The U. S EPA subsequently approved
alternative capture efficiency test nmethods which
t he Agency al so has accepted. White Cap has agreed
to conduct the testing pursuant to the alternative
nmet hods on any of the old Iines we have not renoved

in 1998.
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W& expect that no testing will be conducted
because we wi Il have renoved any renaining |ines.
As a result, no established capture efficiency
exists for White Cap's operations and, therefore, we
are unable to cal cul ate actual em ssions for 1993
and 1994.

VWite Cap and the Agency have agreed that
VWite Cap's actual em ssions are unknown, yet have
not been able to reach agreenent on how to cal cul ate
t hese em ssions. W have proposed that the Agency
allow White Cap to use all owabl e em ssions. The
Agency has agreed that this is a reasonable
approach, but has not agreed that we may use this
nmet hod to cal cul ate our em ssions.

A second approach may be to use the
Agency's own capture estimates for Wiite Cap. In
either case, we are very close to the same nunber of
em ssions. Wiite Cap was the first conpany to ask
for a baseline nmeeting. | have presented the data
in many ways.

Thi s process has taken and continues to
take a long tine. W have spent an incredible
anmount of tine and noney sinply trying to calcul ate

our baseli ne. It should not be such a chore. | f
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t he Agency does this with all other conpanies,
basel i ne determi nation will take forever.

The basel i ne should expect -- I'msorry.
The Board shoul d expect it to take forever because
conpani es don't realize how the Agency is actually
going to apply these rules until the conpanies
submt their proposed baselines and nmeet with the
Agency.

The key to the inplementation of this rule
is the determination of a fair baseline for al
conpanies. | do not believe the Board, the Agency,
or sources can know how these rules will actually
af fect Chicago business until these baseline
det erm nati ons have been nade, which, in ny opinion
shoul d have been made before this rule was proposed
to the Board.

To cal cul ate White Cap's em ssions, we mnust
determ ne the required control efficiency for each
line. Since Wite Cap is conplying with section
218.207(b)(2) of the Illinois pollution -- air
pol lution regul ations, the overall control
efficiency or required control efficiency nmust be
sufficient to control em ssions to the anmpunt which

woul d be admitted if we were -- if we applied
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conpliant coatings. This is commonly referred to as
t he equi val ency rule.

The Agency has agreed that Wite Cap may
take the annual usages of all of the coatings
supplied on each Iine, and in keeping -- and keepi ng
in mnd the 1996 RACT emission |limtations,
cal cul ate the wei ghted average required control
efficiency of each line, and, in turn, the required
capture efficiency for each Iine to achieve
conpliance with Section 218's regul ation

VWite Cap has determ ned the weighted
average required control efficiency for each line in
1993 and 1994 based upon the annual ampbunts of al
coatings applied on each line. Using these required
control efficiencies, allowable ozone season
em ssions in 1993 and 1994 were 169.3 tons and 154.9
tons for an average em ssions of 162.1 tons.

The third concern of ours is the potential
i npact of the New Source Review rules on Wite Cap
ERMS baseline. As set forth in our testinony, our
concern arises fromthe difference in the New Source
Revi ew rul es and the Cean Air Act anendnents of
1990. Specifically, unlike the statutory | anguage

[1l1inois'" New Source Review rules do not currently
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all ow a source in a severe nonattai nment area to net
out of New Source Review if em ssions fromthe new
source will exceed 25 tons per year even if the
source has greater reduction in em ssions at the
same time.

Rather, Illinois rules require Wite Cap to
l[imt emssions fromall of the newlines to 25 tons
per year or offset the em ssions fromthe new |ines
to aratioof 1.3 to 1. Al though Wite Cap would be
able to denmonstrate an offset of 1.3 to 1, it would
| ose all of these em ssion reduction credits inits
ERMS basel i ne.

In essence, by sinply nodernizing and
voluntarily significantly reduci ng actual VOM
em ssions, White Cap would | ose a significant anount
of ATUs. Wereas, if we continue to operate the old
lines and emt several hundred nore tons of VOM each
year, it would be able to retain those em ssions in
its baseline.

To avoid an inequitable application of the
New Source Review rules and the ERVS rules to
sources who are actually reducing em ssions, the
Agency has inforned White Cap that it intends to

modi fy Illinois" New Source Review rules to refl ect
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the federal statutory |anguage on a fast-track
rul emaki ng basis this spring or summrer.

Wth this change, White Cap will be able to
net out of New Source Review and will not be
required to offset emssions at a ratio of 1.3 to
1. VWhite Cap recogni zes that even with this change
the New Source Review rules -- in the New Source
Review rules, Wiite Cap will not be able to include
the em ssions used in the netting exercise inits
ERMS basel i ne.

VWite Cap will, however, receive ATUs for
em ssions fromthe new | ines as pending projects.
VWite Cap has set forth in its prefiled testinony an
exanple of howit will calculate its em ssion
credits versus baseline considering the ongoing
changes to the lines and its permt limts.

Until Wiite Cap has obtained actual permt
l[imtations for the upcom ng changes, it cannot
provi de an actual ERM5 em ssions credit
calcul ation. The Agency has agreed that the
nmet hodol ogy set forth in this exanple is correct,
al t hough the nunbers are only hypotheti cal

VWite Cap greatly appreciates the Agency's

cooperation in discussing the inmpact of these rules
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on our operation. White Cap would also like to
thank the Board for the opportunity to present this
testi nmony today.
VWite Cap advocates the Agency's and the
Board's effort to obtain cleaner air in Chicago.
VWite Cap has anticipated the need to reduce VOM
em ssi ons many years ago and has proactively taken
steps to do so
Let the record show that White Cap is doing

just that, reducing VOM em ssions well beyond what
will be required and doing it earlier than
required. Let ne reiterate that VWite Cap's primry
concern with this rulemaking is that Wiite Cap not
| ose ATUs sinply because it inplenented a VOM
reducti on program before the Agency drafted these
rules, and that the Agency inplenment the rules
fairly and consistent with its representati ons nade
t hroughout this proceeding. Thank you.

MR SAINES: At this tine, we'd like to --
M. Skal on, could you take a | ook at that and
identify that that's your prefiled testinony?

MR SKALON: Yes, it is.

MR SAINES: 1Is that a fair and accurate copy of

your prefiled testinony?

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

97

MR SKALON: Yes, it is.

MR SAINES: Ckay. At this time, we'd like to
nmove the prefiled testinony of Janes C. Skal on for
Al lied Tube & Conduit Corporation to the record as
an exhibit. | believe it's 63.

MR FEINEN: |'mmarking as Exhibit No. 63 the
prefiled testinmony of M. Skalon fromAllied Tube &
Condui t Cor poration

I"d just like to ask one question. |Is this
the sane as the prefiled testinony in your subnmitta
of April 4th?

MR SAINES: Yes, it is.

MR, FEINEN: Having marked that, if there's no
objections, I'll enter it into the record. Seeing
none, then I'Il enter that into the record as
Exhi bit No. 64 (sic), and that was the prefiled
testimony of James C. Skalon for Allied Tube &
Condui t Cor poration

(Hearing Exhibit No. 63
mar ked for identification,
4-21-97.)

MR SAINES: At this tine, M. Fasano, would you

pl ease | ook at this document and identify it? Do

you recogni ze that docunent as your prefiled
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testi mony?

MR FASANO Correct, that's what it is.

MR SAINES: Is it a fair and accurate --

MR, FASANG  Yes.

MR, SAINES: -- version of your prefiled
testi mony?

MR, FASANG  Yes.

MR, SAINES: Thank you. At this time, we'd |ike
to nove that we enter the prefiled testinony for
Ral ph Fasano for White Cap I ncorporated for the
record.

MR, FEINEN: Again, is this the copy of the
testinmony that's part of the April 4th, 1997,
filing?

MR SAI NES: Yes.

MR FEINEN: 1'll mark this as Exhibit No. 64.
That is the prefiled testinmony of Ral ph Fasano from
VWite Cap. |If there's no objections to entering it
into the record, I'll enter it into the record.

(Hearing Exhibit No. 64
mar ked for identification,
4-21-97.)

M5. SAWER: Yeah. | have an objection. |

object to this testinony to the extent that it
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attenpts to establish baseline emssions in this
proceeding. The Illinois EPA thinks that this is

t he i nappropriate proceedi ng for individual sources
to establish baseline em ssions.

MR, FEINEN: Let me get this straight. You're
obj ecting because by his testifying what he thinks
shoul d be the baseline em ssions and how it shoul d
be done is inappropriately setting out how we're
going to do baseline em ssions?

M5. SAWER  Yes.

MR FEINEN: 1'll overrule the objection
M5. SAWER: Well, | would like that objection
not ed.

MR FEINEN: It's duly noted in the record that
the Agency is objecting to ny entering into the
record the Exhibit No. 64, which is the prefiled
testinmony of Ral ph Fasano.

W' Il open the floor up to the prefiled
guestions of the Agency for these w tnesses.

M5. SAWER: Bonnie Sawer, Illinois EPA. CGood
afternoon, M. Skal on. Please explain your
statenment on Page 4 of your testinony that the
I1l1inois EPA acknow edges that the |evel of ozone

entering in the Chicago area is at |evels which
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exceed the ozone standard includi ng when and where
you believe such acknow edgnment was made by the
Illinois EPA?

MR SKALON: It is ny understanding that the
underlying prem se of the Ozone Transport Assessnent
G oup study is that the Chicago and ot her
nonattai nment areas in the northeast will not be
able to neet the ozone standards due to the |evels
of VOM and nitrogen oxide transported into these
ar eas.

It is my understandi ng that throughout
various OTAG neetings in these proceedings, Illinois
EPA has acknow edged that regardl ess of the anount
of VOM reductions in the Chicago area w thout VOM
reductions outside of this area, Chicago will be
unable to neet the ozone national anbient air
qual ity standards.

M5. SAWER: So just for clarification, your
statenment that the Illinois EPA acknow edges that
the | evel of ozone entering the Chicago area is at
| evel s which exceeds the ozone standard is not
entirely accurate?

M5. MHELIC. I'mjust trying to clarify exactly

what you're reading from Could you reiterate your
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gquestion just to nake sure | read the right part?

M5. SAWER: Right. As | understand your
answer, then you're acknow edgi ng that your
statenment that the Illinois EPA acknow edges that
the I evel of ozone entering the Chicago area is at
| evel s whi ch exceed the ozone standard isn't
accurate?

M5. MHELIC. bjection as to misstating what he
stated in his answer when you asked the question

M5. SAWER In his answer, he said that
regardl ess of the anmount of VOM reductions in the
Chi cago area, w thout VOM reductions outside of this
area, Chicago will be unable to neet the nationa
anbient air quality standard for ozone.

That is not -- that doesn't really answer

t he question of whether the |l evel of ozone entering
the Chicago area is at |evels which exceed the ozone
st andar d.

MR SKALON: It is my understanding that it does
exceed.

M5. SAWER: That the |level of ozone entering
t he Chicago area exceeds the national anbient air
quality standard for ozone?

MR, SKALON: That's ny understandi ng, yes.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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M5. SAWER  And what is the basis of that
under st andi ng?

MR, SKALON: Through counseling with the
Coalition, | guess, and through nmy attorneys.

M5. SAWER: Ckay. Are you famliar with
Exhibit 2 of the Illinois EPA in this proceedi ng?

MR SKALON: Yes. | have seen Exhibit 2, but I
woul d not agree that I'"'mfamliar with the docunent.

M5. SAWER: Do you have the docunent in front
of you?

MR SKALON: No, I'msorry, | don't.

(Docunent tendered.)

M5. SAWER  This exhibit indicates ozone
concentration neasured at the southern boundary of
t he Chi cago nonattai nnment area.

M5. MHELIC. | object just to the statement as
to what this exhibit shows. It just states that
it's ozone concentrati ons nmeasured at southern --

MB. SAWER  Ckay.

M5. MHELIC. -- boundaries. This does not
i ndi cate anything el se other than that.

MR, FEI NEN: Pl ease speak up

M5. MHELIC. That this does not reference

exactly what this is. It's just a docunment. 1It's a
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page with nunmbers on it.

M5. SAWER: Ckay. This figure is ozone
concentrations neasured at southern LMOS boundary,
and LMOS stands for Lake M chigan Ozone Study.

VWhat is the highest numerical val ue shown
on this exhibit?

M5. MHELIC. bjection. The exhibit speaks for
itself.

M5. SAWER: Ckay. | can rephrase the
qguestion. The highest nunerical value on this
exhibit is 110 parts per billion. Are you aware
that the ozone national anmbient air quality standard
is set at 120 parts per billion?

M5. MHELIC. bjection as to that's a | ega

guestion as to what the national anmbient air quality

standard is, and, again, it's interpreting -- it
says 110, but it does not say parts per billion
anywhere on this docunent. It's an interpretation

of the docunent.

MR FEINEN:  Your response?

M5. SAWER  Well, | don't think that the fact
that doesn't say that on the docunent nakes it
i nappropriate to ask the question on that. | asked

himif they were aware that the highest nunber
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i ndi cated was 110 parts per billion and that the
ozone standard is at 120.

M5. MHELIC  Same objection.

MR, FEI NEN: How about | rephrase the question
for you? You testified that you don't -- you
bel i eve that the ozone comi ng from outside of the
nonattai nment area to be violating the max, and this
exhi bit shows concentrations of ozone |evels com ng
fromthe southern boundary, if those nunbers
represent parts per mllion, the standard --
billion, excuse me, the standard being 110, |
believe? AmI1 correct?

MS. SAWWER 120

MR, FEINEN: 120, and those being 110. What
does that even show?

MR SKALON: It shows that it's below the 120 if
this is, again, parts per billion

M5. SAWER: Ckay. Do you have any evidence
that indicates that the | evel of ozone entering the
Chicago area is at |levels which neet or exceed the
nati onal anbient air quality standard for ozone?

MR SKALON:  No.

M5. SAWER: Question nunmber two, please explain

your statenent that the Illinois EPA admts that if
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no em ssions were to occur in the Chicago area, this

area could still be in violation of -- 1'd like to
nmodi fy the question. It's witten a little
unclearly. -- (continuing) in violation of the

ozone standard includi ng where and when you believe
the Illinois EPA made any such adm ssion?

MR SKALON: Ckay. It is ny understanding that
t he underlying prem se of the Ozone Transport
Assessnment Group study is that the Chicago and ot her
nonattai nment areas in the northeast will not be
able to neet the ozone standards due to the |evels
of VOM and nitrogen oxide transported into these
ar eas.

It is also ny understanding that throughout
various OTAG neetings in these proceedings, Illinois
EPA has acknow edged that regardl ess of the anount
of VOM reductions in the Chicago area, wthout VOM
reductions outside of this area, Chicago will be
unable to neet the ozone national anbient air
qual ity standards.

M5. SAWER: Is it your understanding that the
Chi cago ozone nonattai nment area would still be in
violation of the ozone standard if no em ssion

reductions were to occur in the Chicago area?
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MR SKALON: | don't know.

M5. SAWER: Ckay. | guess | don't have to ask
nunber three because you' ve already indicated that
you're famliar the Ozone Transport Assessnent
G oup.

Nunber four, are you aware that the Ozone
Transport Assessnent G oup, OTAG involves 37 states
in the eastern portion of the U S. and is intended
to address transported ozone pollution and ozone
precursors?

MR SKALON:  Yes.

M5. SAWER: Are you aware that the Illinois EPA
is participating in the OTAG process and, in fact,
[I'linois EPA has been in a | eadership -- has been a
| eader in this process designed to address

transported ozone pollution and precursors?

MR SKALON: | amaware that Illinois is one of
the 37 states that is a nmenber of OTAG | am not
aware whether Illinois has been a | eader in the
process.

M5. SAWER: Are you aware that the Illinois EPA

assuned reductions in boundary conditions; that is,
transported ozone in making its determ nation in

support of the proposed ERMS rule that nore VOM
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em ssi on reductions are needed w thin the Chicago
ozone nonattai nnent area?

MR, SKALON: | acknow edge that the Agency has
testified that it has assumed reductions in boundary
condi tions, but do not know the basis of the
Agency's assunptions nor what the resulting inpact
of these assunmed reductions will be on the level of
ozone in Chicago.

MR MATHUR  Bharat Mathur, Illinois EPA. |
have a couple of followup questions.

M. Skal on, you said you're famliar with
the Ozone Transport Assessnent G oup?

MR SKALON:  Yes.

MR MATHUR: Would you tell us what your goals
are?

MR SKALON: |I'msorry?

MR MATHUR: Would you tell us what the goal of
this Ozone Transport Assessnent G oup is?

MR SKALON: | don't renenber. |'msorry.

MR, MATHUR: Do you know where the Qzone
Transport Assessnment G oup neets?

MR SKALON: No, |I'msorry.

MR SAINES: bjection. What's the rel evance of

where the Ozone Transportati on Assessnent G oup
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nmeets and what date it neets and, you know, what
t hey have?

MR MATHUR: |I'mtrying to find out how famliar
he is with the Ozone Transport Assessnment G oup
because he has testified extensively in the witten
testinony about what that group is all about and
what the Agency said relative to that group

MR SKALON: As a nenber of the Coalition,
rely on our attorneys to comunicate the information
to us.

MR MATHUR: So it's fair to say you have no
i ndependent under st andi ng or know edge of the Qzone
Transport Assessnment G oup?

MR SKALON:  Yes.

MR, MATHUR:  Thank you.

M5. SAWER: Ckay. That concludes, | guess, our
questions for M. Skal on.

MR, FEINEN: Why don't you proceed with your
guestions for M. Fasano?

M. SAWER: Ckay. Good afternoon, M. Fasano.
This is Page 9 of our prefiled questions.

Does Wiite Cap anticipate that it will be
able to denponstrate that it should receive voluntary

over conpliance adjustnent as part of its baseline
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determ nation?

MR, FASANO. This is Wite Cap's prinmary concern
with this rulemaking. It depends on how t he Agency
cal cul ates White Cap's baseline em ssions, and
despite our efforts to resolve this matter, that is
unknown at this tine.

M5. SAWER: Pl ease explain your position that
the rules in Part 203 nmake it irrelevant whether the
sources decreased em ssions beyond the increase
occurring fromthe new unit when aggregate em ssions
fromall new or nodified units in the previous five
years exceeds 25 tons per year?

MR, FASANO. Qur position is the only way to
conpl etely avoid New Source Review is that all new
lines have to -- all new lines have | ess than 25
tons total VOMemi ssions. Oherwise, | will have to
net out or offset depending on em ssions from
i ndi vi dual units.

M5. SAWER: So essentially it is rel evant
whet her the source has decreased em ssions for
pur poses of netting out of New Source Review, isn't
that correct?

MR, FASANO. For purposes of netting out, it's

rel evant.
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M5. SAWER: Pl ease explain your position that
to avoid New Source Review all of the new |ines at
VWite Cap is -- that Wite Cap is installing mnust
have | ess than 25 tons of emni ssions when
aggr egat ed?

MR FASANO Well, it's the sanme answer | stated
before. To avoid New Source Review applicability,
all new units nust have | ess than 25 tons em ssions
to avoid New Source Review.

M5. SAWER: Isn't it true for purposes of
netting you woul d aggregate all newlines to
determine if there has been a net increase?

MR, FASANO. Yeah, for netting purposes, true.

M5. SAWER: Pl ease explain your position that
the de mininmus rule in the Clean Air Act constitutes
a definition of the termdid de m ninus increase?

MR, FASANO. It is nmy position that if | instal
aline with 25 tons or nore of VOM em ssions, but
take out a line with greater em ssions, that New
Source review would not apply under the Cean Air
Act, and | would not need to offset emi ssions from
this new |ine.

M5. SAWER: |s that position based on defining

de m ni nus based on the de m ninus rul e?
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M5. MHELIC. bjection as to that's a |ega
question. | believe it's an interpretation of the
Clean Air Act.

MR, FEINEN: Coul d you repeat the question for
me if you're going to continue?

M5. SAWER: Ckay. | asked if your position is
based on defining de mninmus increase as based on
the de mninus rul e?

M5. MHELIC. It's a legal interpretation

M5. SAWER: The question is related to
somet hing that he directly testified on

MR, FEINEN: Coul d you rephrase the question and
just ask himwhat he's basing his testinony on, if
it's based on that?

Can you answer the question?

MR FASANO. |I'mnot really sure if | can, you
know. | nean, the de mininus rule fromthe U S EPA
Cean Air Act anendnents, the way | understand that,
and that's what we're tal ki ng about here, that the
[Ilinois doesn't have the sanme | anguage in the New
Source Review in their New Source Review. That's
basi cally what we're saying

MR, FEI NEN: Thank you.

MR, FASANO. And the Agency has agreed that it
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is different. W tal ked about that before.

M5. SAWER: As to question five, | believe you
clarified that in your testinmony, you referred to it
as statutory | anguage rather than rules, federal New
Source Review rules. Thank you for clarifying that
point, and 1'll wthdraw question six.

MR, FEINEN: Are there any other questions?
Hol d on a second.

M. SAWER: W might have just a couple
foll ow up questions.

MR FEINEN: Ckay. Well, let's see if there's
any -- are there any other questions for any of the
Wi t nesses?

M5. HENNESSEY: | just have one or two quick
gquestions. M. Skalon, you state that these
regul ations will place a disproportionate share of
the burden on the industry which has al ready been

significantly regulated to reduce enissions --

MR SKALON: I'msorry. I'msorry, | couldn't
hear you.

M5. HENNESSEY: |'mjust reading fromyour
conclusion. I'msorry. | wanted to know if you

could clarify or explain the basis for your

statenment a little nore fully, the statenent that
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t hese regul ations place a disproportionate share of
t he burden on the industry?

MR, SKALON: And you're -- you would Iike?

MS. HENNESSEY: | just -- | guess why do you
think it places a disproportionate share of the
burden on the industry?

M5. MHELIC. Just to clarify, on this -- on
stationary sources other than, | think, to clarify
i ndustry stationary sources --

MS. HENNESSEY: Yes.

M5. MHELIC. -- as conpared to other area
sources or other nobile sources?

MR, SKALON: | feel the Agency has been going to
the stationary sources. They have asked us to show
reductions in em ssions over the years, and they
continue to cone to us for those reductions,
stationary sources.

MS. HENNESSEY: Do you have an opinion as to
what the appropriate proportionate share of
stationary sources should be?

MR. SKALON: Do | have an opinion on that?
HENNESSEY:  Yes.

SKALON:  No.

5 3 b

HENNESSEY: Thank you.
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M5. SAWER: | have a couple of additiona
guestions for M. Fasano.

M. Fasano, you stated that the Illinois
EPA agreed that Wiite Cap's actual enissions are
unknown. Wien did the Illinois EPA nake that
agreenent ?

MR FASANO. Well, | think in our neetings that
we' ve been having in trying to determ ne baseline
t hat based on our situation of not being able to
have a good handle on the capture efficiency of al
the Iines that you have agreed or the Agency has
agreed that we can't definitively say in 1993 and
1994 what our true actual em ssions were, and
t hought that was agreed between White Cap and the
Agency.

M5. SAWER M. Fasano, isn't it true that it
was the capture efficiency at Wiite Cap's facilities
for certain lines that we had sone di sagreenent as
to whether -- what is the appropriate nethod to
determ ne that?

MR FASANO. Correct.

M5. SAWER: Also in your testinony, you stated
that the Illinois EPA agreed to -- agreed that

al | owabl e emi ssions were a reasonable way to
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cal cul ate baseline. Wen did the Agency nake that
agreenent ?

MR FASANO | don't think | said it exactly
like that with that exact |anguage. W have
proposed to the Agency to allow Wiite Cap to use
al | owabl e em ssions. The Agency has agreed that
this is a reasonabl e approach, but has not agreed
that we may use this nmethod to cal cul ate em ssions.
So you agreed that this is a reasonabl e approach
but you haven't agreed that we can use it or not
yet .

M5. SAWER: You stated that the Agency agreed
to that; is that correct?

MR, FASANO. | believe you did

M5. SAWER: Yeah. Was that agreenment just
essentially ny statenent that | thought it seened
reasonable, or was it an agreenent fromthe Agency.

MR SAINES: Objection. |Is there a distinction
between that? Aren't you representing the Agency?

M5. SAWER In fact, | believe, M. Fasano,
didn't | state that while | thought it sounded
reasonable, | couldn't give you a final, sort of,
agreenment on that?

MR, FEINEN:  You know, we're getting, like,
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outside the scope of this hearing. W're getting
into, like, what happened at special neetings that
are going on during the course of this, and | think
you can raise that you mght not agree with himthat
you had sone kind of agreenent, and I don't know i f
we should follow down this path any further
| think it's obvious that there's been

statenments nade between the Agency and White Cap and
they mght not all be in agreenent, and let's just
leave it at that. | don't think we're going to get
one person sayi ng one thing or another

M5. SAWER:  That's fine.

MR, FASANO. So you don't want ne to answer
t hat ?

MR, FEINEN: You don't have to. If you want to
answer it, you can, but you don't have to.

M5. SAWER: That's fine. Do you have sone
guesti ons?

MR, MATHUR: Yeah. | have one follow up
guesti on.

M5. MHELIC. To Ral ph or Jam e?

MR MATHUR: To M. Fasano.

You testified today that you believe that

in your discussions with the Agency you di scussed
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and agreed to the met hodol ogy, but that the nunbers
haven't been agreed to. |Is that true?

MR, FASANO. That was -- | think what you're
referring to mght be when we said in the ful
testinmony that's been submtted the exanple of how
we calculate the emssion -- the ATU credits,
em ssion credits, as they change and go through
because of our nodernizati on program because we're
right in the middle of it, and we're going to
continue pulling old lines and putting new lines in.

That met hodol ogy of that exanple that's
presented that's where those nunbers are, you know,
repeat -- you know, maybe I'm-- | think that's what
you' re tal king about, but maybe not.

MR MATHUR. I'mreferring to your verba
testinmony a few m nutes ago.

MR FASANO  Ckay.

MR, MATHUR: You said that there is agreenent in
nmet hodol ogy between you and the Agency, but not
necessarily in the final nunbers. That's what |
think you testified.

MR FASANO That was -- that, | think --
wi t hout goi ng back, | think that was related to

referring back to the original the full testinony
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and tal ki ng about the exanple on the methodol ogy
that cal cul ates the changes in em ssion credits.

MR, MATHUR: M. Fasano, ny question is, is it
not your testinony that you feel that there is
agreement with the Agency on the nethodol ogy?

MR, FASANO. Not for cal cul ati ng baseline, not
yet. | nean, we're -- there's two things -- you're
m xing two things up, | believe. The nethodol ogy of
cal cul ating baseline is one thing, and we're cl ose
to an agreenent, but we don't have an agreenent
because of capture efficiency and that affects a
coupl e of things.

The net hodol ogy that we agreed on that is
definitely an agreenment is related to an exanple on
how to cal culate the ATU credits, emission credits,
agai nst basel i ne t hroughout the change of taking
lines out and putting lines in, and that was an
exanpl e we submitted because it's so confusing that
you have to have -- | wanted to put an exanple on
the record because no one in this roomwould
remenber six nonths fromnow how to even cal cul ate
t he changes as we go through this nodernization
program because it's very conpl ex.

So we had an exanpl e placed on the record.
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That et hodol ogy of using that exanple to show when
we take this out and put this in what effect does it
have on our baseline, on ATU emission credits, al
that kind of -- that nethodol ogy we did agree on in
a neeting with the Illinois EPA

As far as a final agreenent on nethodol ogy,
it depends if you can tell me your definition of
nmet hodol ogy, then nmaybe | can be a little nore
preci se because | think you' re |ooking for was there
an agreenent on net hodol ogy on baseline cal cul ati on

I think we're real close. W've got the
broad scope, you know, pretty much narrowed down,
but there's a few points in there that we haven't
agreed on yet, and I think we're real close in
comng to an agreenment. You know, hopefully, we
will soon.

MR, MATHUR: This nethodol ogy that you spoke of
to your firmor mne, was that based on the version
of the rule that is before the Board?

MR, FASANO  Yeah.

MR, MATHUR:  Thank you.

MR, FEI NEN: Any ot her questions of these
Wi t nesses?

M5. HENNESSEY: Let ne just ask one
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clarification question. |It's kind of a broad
qguestion. | understand that you have an objection
to the requirenent that stationary sources reduce
em ssions by 12 percent, but assuming that that was
a given, do you have an objection to the use of a
tradi ng scheme to achi eve that reduction as opposed
to a command and control regul ation?

M5. MHELIC. The ERVS Coalition as a whole or
t he individual nenbers?

M5. HENNESSEY: O these witnesses.

M5. MHELIC. Could you read that question
back?

(Record read.)

MR, SKALON: That woul d depend on what the
command and control would be. 1'mnot all that
famliar with it, but, again, unless that's defined,
| really don't know if | can answer that.

MS. HENNESSEY: M. Fasano?

MR, FASANO. Yeah. |In Wite Cap's case, comand
and control or a trading programis fine. | think a
trading program| don't have a problemwth. It's
just that we have the proper starting point that the
basel i nes are established and everybody is in

agreement. So if you're starting off where
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everything is fine in the beginning, you have an
establ i shed baseline that's understandabl e and
agreed upon, then the trading programis fine too.

MS. HENNESSEY: Thank you.

MR FEINEN: | think we're going to take a 15
m nute break. M. Burke, M. Ron Burke, fromthe
Ameri can Lung Associ ation was here earlier. | think
he went to get some |unch and said he'd be back in
about a half an hour.

So let's take a break for about 15
m nutes. \Wen he cones back, we'll proceed with his
testimony because | don't think ERVMS has any ot her
W t nesses to present.

M5. MHELIC. W'Il have all of themtonorrow

MR, FEINEN: And we'll conclude today with
M. Burke's testinony.

M5. MHELIC. And | would like to notify the
Board that John Sutton from Wico Packaging is
unavail able to testify tonorrow. So we are
wi thdrawi ng his prefiled testinmony and submitting it
as a public conment.

MR, FEI NEN: Thank you. Let's take 15.

(Break taken.)

MR, FEINEN: Let's go back on the record. W're
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goi ng to conclude today's hearings with testinony
fromM. Burke fromthe American Lung Associ ation
Tormorrow we'll start up at -- let's go off the
record.

(Di scussi on had

of f the record.)

MR FEINEN. Back on the record. So tonorrow
we'll start at 9:00 o'clock in the nmorning, if the
court reporter can make it | guess.

THE REPORTER: |'msure that's fine.

MR, FEI NEN: Thank you.

So we'll start at 9:00 o' cl ock tonorrow
with the ERVS Coalition's remai ning witnesses, and
we' || proceed that day dependi ng on who shows up in
t he audi ence and wants to testify.

Wth that, | believe we're going to turn it
over to M. Burke for his testinmony today. Do you
want to swear the w tness?

(Wtness sworn.)
VWHEREUPON:
R ON BURKE
called as a witness herein, having been first duly
sworn, deposeth and saith as foll ows:

MR, BURKE: Good afternoon. 1'mglad to be here
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today. M nanme is Ron Burke. |'mdirector of
environnental health of the American Lung

Associ ation of Metropolitan Chicago. W have been
working with -- at |east discussing this proposa
with the Agency for, |I think, well over a year now
and had a nunber of opportunities to run sone of our
concerns by them and what |'mgoing to sumari ze
today are those concerns that we're left with after

what | would consider to be | engthy negotiations.

Before | begin though, | want to nention a
couple of things. One, I'mgoing to be sumari zi ng
the prefiled testinmony | submitted. In sone cases,
"Il be reading it. In other cases, I'll be
skipping things. So as | understand it, 1'Il need

to submt the actual testinony as an attachnent; is
that right?

MR. FEINEN: An exhibit.

MR, BURKE: An exhibit once |I'm done. Secondly,
I just want to say that the Lung Association thinks
as a whole this is a really good program and an
excellent step in the right direction towards
cleaner air. |It's a creative way for us to nmake
continued progress, clean the air, and help all the

residents of northeastern Illinois breathe a bit
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easier, but especially the nearly 800,000 who suffer
some type of |ung disease

We're confident that along with other
prograns that the Agency is currently inplenmenting
and planning to inplement, we can reach attai nnent

with the current ozone standard and think we can go

beyond that as well, but I won't get into that now.
So I'lIl start with sonme of the comments
again that we have remaining, if you will, after our

di scussions with the Agency and try to really focus
on our mgjor concerns. Again, we think it's a good
proposal at this point that can be nmade better wth
some of the recomendations |I'mgoing to cover right
now.

Qur first concern focuses on nonitoring and
gquantification of em ssions, and, therefore, the
generation of the ATUs. W're concerned that the
rule fails to account for certain inaccuracies that
inevitably will be encountered when we estimate
em ssions -- we in the industry estimte em ssions
and report them This potentially creates an
opportunity for sources to claimfal se ATUs or to be
gi ven ATUs in excess of what really should have been

all otted.
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Qur recommendation is that the rule
di scount credits to account for inaccuracies with
the value of the discount varying in accordance wth
the confidence in the estimate, and this i s designed
to make sure that we're not allotting nmore ATUs than
we really should and, therefore, allowing for nore
air pollution than should be emtted under the
pr ogr am

We think this approach is necessary and it
al so creates an incentive for sources to apply nore
accurate quantification protocols that have ot her
benefits as well, and | know that the Agency's
proposal and testinony given by M. Romaine fromthe
Agency spells out the ways in which enmi ssions will
be estimted and how the agencies will be allotted,
and we think on the whole those are good procedures,
but still |eave sone roomfor certainty that should
be factored into the allotnment of ATUs.

Qur second maj or concern has to do with
potential, although unlikely, recognized potenti al
increases in air toxins, specifically air toxins
that are also VOVs. Because the proposed rul e does
not distingui sh between toxi c and nontoxi c VOM

em ssions, a source could purchase credits generated
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by nont oxi c VOM em ssi ons reductions and use those
to increase toxi c VOM em ssions, and we recogni ze
that this is unlikely and it certainly would be an
uni nt ended consequence of the proposal, and al so
understand that any increase in toxic VOM em ssions
woul d be limted overall by the proposal's cap on
total VOV from em ssions units.

Nonet hel ess, it still is conceivable that
thi s uni ntended consequence could occur, especially
gi ven that MACT, the federal MACT provisions, are
not applicable yet for a nunber of sources in the
metropolitan area the Agency has referred to in the
past .

In fact, that MACT will still be in place
and is in no way prohibited or usurped, if you will,
by this rule, but given that MACT isn't in place yet
and won't be in place for a nunber of sources, we
think it nakes sense to try to minimze the
i kelihood that this unintended consequence wil |
occur .

So we have reconmended that the rule
establish an em ssions cap based on actual historic
em ssions for HAPs and TACs until such time and | --

let me finish this sentence -- until such tine as
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control standards are adopted and being in force.
nmentioned TACs where the state's toxic air
cont am nants which the Board is well aware of in
some cases they go beyond the federal hazardous air
pol lutant's list.

W'd like to see a cap on these toxic VCCs,
both the state and the federal's, until such tine as
MACT is in place for the affected sources to make
sure that this unintended consequence of |ocalized
i ncreases and hazardous air pollutants and toxic air
cont am nants does not occur.

That basically summarizes it. | won't go
into any nore detail though. | may have sone
guestions fromthe Agency | recognize.

Rel ated to this point is the rule's
proposal to track trends and spacial distributions
of hazardous air pollutants to essentially nonitor
for this potential unintended consequence, and while
we think that's a good idea, it sinply, | don't
t hi nk, goes far enough when you consider the
potential ramfications of |ocalized increases in
toxic VOVs. So, again, we recommend this cap based
on historic actual em ssions until such tine as MACT

is in place.
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Anot her concern we have rel ates back to New
Source Review. As | understand, the proposal would
substitute the annual New Source Review of fsets
requirenents with a seasonal requirenent to hold
ATUs in an anount 1.3 tines the actual seasona
em ssions. As | understand it, this would elimnate
the of fset requirenments during the non-ozone
season. W basically object to this proposal and
guestion its consistency with the Clean Air Act. W
think the offset requirenents should remain
appl i cabl e during both the ozone season and the
non- ozone season

W woul d, frankly, hate to | ose those air
quality inprovenents during the non-ozone season
even though they may not be required by the C ean
Air Act. W acknow edge that that's a possibility.

Anot her maj or concern relates to baseline
em ssions. The rule would allow sources to
substitute nonrepresentative, quote, unquote,
seasonal em ssions fromthe '94 through -- for 1994
t hrough 1996 with seasonal em ssions from 1990
t hrough '93 or 1997 for purposes of calculating the
basel i ne.

W recommend that the rul e define
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nonrepresentative in order to avoid di sagreenents
that could end up del aying inplenentation and in
order to limt the extent to which baselines exceed
actual em ssions.

| think it's fairly well understood that
this last point, the fact that baselines could
exceed actual em ssions, is areality, and in ny
di scussions with the Agency, it's been suggested

that the anmount that the em ssions nmight exceed the

baseline -- mght exceed actual em ssions woul d
probably be relatively small, and that seens to be
true.

On the other hand, to the extent that we
can mnimze this difference, |I think we should, and
a nore clear definition of nonrepresentative m ght
hel p clear that up, and the exanple |I give for how
you might do that is to link these nonrepresentative
em ssions to changes that are not expected to occur
nore than once every 20 years, and that's just off
the top of ny head, and I don't have a | ot of
experience with this, but it's the kind of
definition that one might use to narrow this
somewhat vague definition down and keep the program

on track as we nove to the inplenentation phase.
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Al so | have some comments concerning the
proposed excl usions. The best avail abl e technol ogy
excl usion we were concerned is defined far too
broadly. W fear that it mght underm ne the
proposal with far too many excl usions that woul d
[imt em ssions reductions and potentially too many
appeal s that m ght delay inplenentation

I know the Agency has testified in the past
the i nmportance of appropriately limting the nunber
of exclusions. M. Ronaine has testified if nost
em ssions units are determ ned to have best
avai | abl e technol ogy, the ERVS will not reduce the
pool of VOM enissions to the |evel required for ROP,
rate of progress, and that's clearly a -- the
potential is there for that to happen, even though
it may be unlikely.

So we have suggested a nore detail ed
definition of best avail able technol ogy to, again,
m nimze the potential for this to occur.
Specifically, we recommend that the definition nore
specifically delineate a maxi num degree of VOM
reduction, which seens to be the key definition or
the key phrase within that overall definition of

best avail abl e technol ogy.
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One approach is to define that as being the
| east as pronounced -- let nme back up. Maxi num
degree of VOMreduction will be at |east as
pronounced as the greatest |evel of reductions from
conparable units. Again, M. Romaine has testified
that that would nore than likely be one, if not the
nost, inportant way of determ ning best available
t echnol ogy.

If a source has emi ssions that are clearly
hi gher than a conparable unit, then comobn sense
suggests that that's probably not the best avail able
technol ogy. We're suggesting that that common sense
be translated into the definition to avoid, again,
potential delays and disputes, and the witten
testinmony that 1'Il be submitting gives you sone
speci fic | anguage that you might take a |ook at. |
won't go into that now

These excl usi ons al so have sone potenti al
ram fications for the Agency's overall plan for
achieving attai nment with the ozone standard and
mai ntai ning a rate of progress em ssions reductions
if we don't, inreality, get the kind of em ssions
reductions that we're expecting because of

exclusions. Then that mght throw us off in the
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overal | process of making reasonabl e progress
towards attai nnent.

The third point on the exclusions issue,
t he LAER exclusions we fear ignore the fact that a
unit neeting LAER can still increase its em ssions
by increasing production and at |least that's ny
under st andi ng, and, therefore, we recomend a
seasonal emissions limt up front for units that are
excl uded because they neet LAER to nake sure that we
don't have increases due to increased rates of
production. Again, the goal there is to mnimze
unexpect ed em ssions increases.

Anot her point is concerning the banking of
ATUs in order to account for any uncertainties. |
mentioned earlier to mnimze the potential for
em ssi on spi kes because of ATU transactions, we
supported deduction fromthe unused ATUs that are
banked for the next season. Specifically, unused
ATUs that are carried over to the next season shoul d
be reduced by five percent in order to help inprove
air quality and to help sustain the effective
operation of the ERVG

Three percent of the unused ATUs woul d be

retired and two percent would be deposited in the
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ACMVA, and we think this is -- it makes -- especially
makes sense given that we are still struggling to
reach attainnent with the ozone standard. W need
every reduction we can get, and | believe the
proposal -- the Agency's proposal at one tine
actual ly included this type of deduction on banked
ATUs, and we'd be bringing it back for these
reasons.

W& have sone coments concerni ng shut downs
and how the facilities who shut down can use their
credits in the future, their ATUs in the future. W
object to the proposals -- the proposal to allow 100
percent of a source's air pollution to effectively
live on into perpetuity even after the source is
shut down.

| should qualify that. Not necessarily
into perpetuity, but at |east as long as the
proposal is around or the proposal is in effect,
shoul d say. These ATUs would Iive on both through
the ACVA, those that go to the ACMA, | think it's 20
percent, and through what appears to be a conveyance
of ownership of these ATUs until the region has
reached attai nment and has an approved attai nment

plan. W believe 100 percent of the ATUs shoul d be
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retired from shut downs.

Furthernore, allowi ng a source to retain 80
percent of its ATUs wongly suggests that the ATUs
are sone type of property, when in reality, they are
part of an alternative regulatory system owned by
the public, not individual conpanies, and I'd really
like to enphasize how inportant we think it is for
this type of change to be made. 1It's one of the
maj or flaws, we think, in the overall proposal, and
then | have sone general conments concerning
conpliance with the overall proposal

As currently proposed, an ATU gener at or
could sell -- potentially could sell invalid ATUs
and not suffer any consequences unl ess doing so
creates an em ssions excursion. At least this is ny
understandi ng. There may be sone | egal |anguage
that 1'mnot aware of, but this appears to be the
case now. Nonconpliance fees or sone other
conpensati on, we believe, should be specified in the
rule for inaccurate filing and late filing even if
this doesn't result in em ssions excursion

I want to wap up with our recomendati on
for how best to track conpliance and to essentially

assure the public that the sources that are affected
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by these regulations are, in reality, enmitting the
em ssions that their supposed to be and conplying
with the overall program

As you might imagine, there's -- on the
surface, there's sone skepticismabout this whole
concept of emissions trading and, in part, | think
it's valid and, in part, it, | think, stens from
some ignorance of the current regulatory system

There is an assunption that -- there is a
m sunder st andi ng, | think, that this program sonehow
gi ves people the right to pollute and conpanies the
right to pollute that they don't already have, and
inreality, our current systemeffectively gives
conpanies the right to pollute, but at certain rates
and with certain restrictions and that nakes sense.

Nonet hel ess, there is a perception, and in
some cases it's valid, that this program em ssions
trading i s somehow skewed and coul d potentially
result in, howdo |I say it, oh, abuse, you know,
abuse of the system Well, | don't -- the Lung
Associ ation thinks on the whole this is a good
program and that's highly unlikely to happen

It is real inportant that the public

under stand how this program works and under st ands
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how it affects the sources |located in their
communities. So we have suggested what we think is
a relatively sinple source-by-source conpliance
summary for this programthat pulls together key
information fromdifferent conponents of the
proposed program

Again, we think this will help ensure that
the overall programis running properly. [I'Il just
take off the itens that we think would ideally be
reported, perhaps, at the end of every ozone season
once the transaction period is over, the
reconciliation period | believe it's called. The
public woul d have access to the data. It would
actually be reported to the public as such

Nunber one, actual seasonal em ssion --
this is, again, a source-by-source sunmary. Nunber
one, actual seasonal emi ssions and ATUs in tons of
VOM gi ven, and peopl e may not understand what an ATU
actually is; the ATU allotnment through that season;
the difference between the consunmed ATUs and
allotted ATUs; the total nunber of ATUs sold, if
any; the number of ATUs obtained, if any, from
anot her participating or new participating source;

t he nunber of ATUs obtained, if any, via em ssions
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reducti ons generators; the nunber of ATUs obtai ned,
if any, froma general participating source; and the
nunber of ATUs, if any, obtained through an

auction. I'mnot sure if the programstill has an
auction. | think you got rid of that, didn't you?

MR KANERVA:  (Nodding.)

MR, BURKE: Ckay. Skip that one. The nunber of
ATUs obtained, if any, fromthe ACMA. That's stil
there I know. The total nunber of ATUs obtai ned
okay, through these different types of
transactions. The ATU bal ance, which would be the
actual ATU emissions minus those allotted plus the
obt ai ned m nus the sold. Do you see where |'m going
with this?

And then you can nore clearly determne
whet her an excursion has actually occurred, and this
is the kind of information that the average person
can | ook at and say okay, | see what happened here
at the source of ny community, and clearly this was
done properly or clearly it wasn't, and it's a nice,
sinple way to determ ne whet her an excursion
actual ly occurred.

Then you woul d al so have the daily

excursion notice and the description of the
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conpensation required, assuming this is relevant;
the status of the conmpensation. |If there's been an
audit conducted, you know, note that; the date of
the I ast audit, nonconpliance or deficiencies

di scovered, if any, nake a note of that in the
description, and then if there's any corrective
action plan required or sonmething sinilar, nmake a
note of that as well and then the status of that

pl an.

This is, in a snapshot, a way for the
public to understand to what extent their -- the
sources located in their conmunities are performng
properly versus the way the systemis set up now,
it's fairly fragmented. | think it will work, but
it's going to be very hard for the general public to
get a handle on how it works and whether or not the
sources in their communities are actually
conpl yi ng.

| have just two other brief comments, one
on intersector transactions. On the whole, we
support the concept of intersector transactions,

t hough we recogni ze the reductions for nobile and
area sources may be hard to predict and can be

short-1ived.
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There's al so sonme uncertainties involved in
gquantifying these types of reduction. As |
understand it, there's likely to be a separate
rul emaking to create the systemto allow for this,
but either way, | just -- we wanted to have on the
record our reconmmendation that the rule or the rule
to follow, if that's the course we're going to take
shoul d di scount ATUs to account for uncertainties
i nherent in making these types of quantifications
and to prohibit the ATU banking and Iimt the ATU
life-span for inprovenents that won't |ast.

We think for these particular types of
credits it makes little or no sense to actually
all ow for the banking of these ATUs, the ATU
generated fromthese types of em ssions reductions
primarily because of the fact that they're likely to
be so nmuch nore short-1lived

And finally, | have a comment on
directionality and reactivity. W recomrend t hat
the rule nore specifically commt the Agency to
reviewing the effects of trade directionality and
VOM reactivity on the ERVS performance. Again,
dependi ng on the direction of the trades, we may

actually see nore or |ess ozone reduction benefit,
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and while we agree with the Agency that it probably
doesn't make sense at this tinme to put sone kind of
[imtation on the directionality of trades, it is
very inmportant to make sure that the program doesn't
result in disproportionate direction of trades that
woul d i npede the overall program s performance

So those are all ny specific comments
after, again, sone fairly lengthy discussions with
the Agency, and | want to just summarize again by
saying that on the whole, we think this is a very
good program It's noving us in the right
direction. It can be nade better with the
suggesti ons we've nmade here today, but on the whole,
the American Lung Association is supportive of this
pr ogr am

MR, FEINEN: Do you want to nove your prefiled
testinmony to the record as an exhibit?

MR, BURKE: Yeah, | woul d.

MR FEINEN: | think you have two separate
filings. So let's nake themtwo separate exhibits
just to keep -- make nmy life a little bit easier

MR, BURKE: Yeah. | apologize to all of you for
| eaving a page out of the prefiled testinony. |

hope you all got the --
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MR FEINEN 1'll mark as Exhibit --
MR, BURKE: -- additional page.
MR FEINEN: -- No. 65 the prefiled testinony of

M. Burke dated April 4th, which was received by the

Board on April 4th. If there's no objections to
entering that into the record as an exhibit, I'Il do
so. | see no objections. That will be entered as

an exhibit as No. 65, and that's the prefiled
testinmony of M. Burke fromthe American Lung
Associ ation of Metropolitan Chicago dated April 4th.
I"m marking as Exhibit No. 66 an additional
page of prefiled testinony dated April 8th, 1997,
fromM. Burke, which is the infanmus m ssing page.
If there's no objection to that, 1'Il enter that
into the record. Seeing none, that will be entered
as an Exhibit No. 66, the additional page of
prefiled testinmony from M. Burke, Anerican Lung
Associ ation Metropolitan Chicago dated April 8th.
| believe the Agency has some prefiled
questions for M. Burke.
(Hearing Exhibit Nos. 65 and 66
mar ked for identification,
4-21-97.)

M5. SAWER: Yes, we do. Bonnie Sawyer,
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I[Ilinois EPA. (Good afternoon, M. Burke. Starting
with our first question, which is on Page 11 of our
prefiled questions, are you aware that sources under
the proposed ERMS rule will be allotted ATUs on the
basi s of baseline em ssions determ ned by the
[l1linois EPA reduced by 12 percent?

MR, BURKE: Yes.

M5. SAWER: Pl ease expl ai n how di scounti ng of
credits is relevant for a system such as the one
descri bed in question one above? Specifically, I'm
referring to the discounting referred to in nunber
one of the first page of your testinony.

MR, BURKE: | understand. What we've suggested
is that there are inevitably going to be sone
uncertainties in quantifying actual em ssions in the
baseline. Let ne back up

There's going to be sone differences
i nevitably, we think, between the actual em ssions
and the baseline enmissions, and | nentioned before
that even the Agency has acknow edged that baseline
em ssions may actual ly exceed actual emnissions
slightly. This is an exanple of how ATUs may be
slightly inflated.

Secondl y, when we estinmate em ssions, there
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are uncertainties as well, and our concern is that
potentially, though it may be unlikely, potentially
the ATUs may be inflated. W may actually be
granti ng excess ATUs because of these uncertainties
in quantification.
So our suggestion was let's account for

t hose uncertainties by slightly discounting the
allotted ATUs. So if it's -- let's say, for
exanpl e, that the overall procedures for quantifying
em ssions and, therefore, ATUs is, | think, a two
percent |evel of uncertainty, we mght discount the
credits, the ATUs, two percent to account for that
to make sure that we're not granting excess ATUs.

MR, KANERVA: 1'd like to ask a follow up
guestion. Roger Kanerva. This discounting of the
allotment as you've clarified now, are you
suggesting that this discounting would be -- they're
avail abl e in sone way, that sone em ssions are
quantified nore rigorously than others in sonme
cases, there's a range? Are you suggesting that
this would apply relative to the type of em ssions
quantification protocol ?

MR BURKE: Yeah. | think that is a legitimte

option. As | recall, I think it was M. Romaine's
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testinmony at one point in this |long process who
actually outlined different strategies for
guantifying em ssions, sone of which were nore
accurate than others, and we think it's reasonable
if a source chooses to use the nore accurate
quantification protocol, then the degree of

di scounting woul d be |l ess and vi ce-versa.

Agai n, that creates an incentive for the
sources to use nore accurate approaches, which keeps
the programon a whole nore valid and al so m nim zes
t he chances that we are granting excess ATUs and not
getting the kind of reductions that we all hope for

MR FEINEN: M. Hurley, do you have a foll ow up
to that?

MR, HURLEY: | do have a followup to that. In
t hat proposal, are you meking the assunption that
all these inaccuracies are going to be on one side
of the line, that the actuals are actually going to
be nore than the baseline?

MR BURKE: No, |'mnot making that assunption
| understand that it could go either way. CQur
suggestion is that we adhere on the side of caution
protecti veness versus di sm ssiveness.

MR, HURLEY: And that would be for every

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

145

applicant?

MR BURKE: | think a recent -- you know, given
that that's the case that it could go either way, |
t hi nk your degree of discounting would reflect that,
but, nonetheless, it would probably nake sense to
have sone smal|l degree of discount.

MR FEI NEN:  Agency?

M5. SAWER: Yeah. | would like to ask question
nunber seven out of order here because | think it's
nore of a followup to what we're tal ki ng about
ri ght now

M. Burke, are you aware that the 12
percent em ssions reduction required of the proposed

rul e includes two percent contingency to assure that

the state of Illinois neets its 1999 ROP target?
MR BURKE: Yeah. [|I'mnot sure if |I was aware

of that or not. It depends on where that

contingency is coming in. | was aware that there

was going to be sone type of buffer, and I wasn't
sure if it was part of the ACVA or where this
conti ngency was comng in.

So I'mnot sure how to answer that. |
suppose the answer is no, and | could actually

use -- it would be helpful for ne to have that for
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the -- I'"mnot sure where it is. Nonetheless, |
still think it makes sense given the fact that we're
still a good ways fromreaching attai nment to not

only have that contingency, but also to discount the
ATUs.

Let's bear in mnd that another -- |
menti oned the second reason for doing the
di scounting is to encourage nore accurate types of
protocol s, quantification protocols. So I think
there's two good reasons to do it.

M5. SAWER: | think you' ve answered the first
part of question nunber three, but I'Il ask the
second part. Please describe such inaccuracies, the
extent or amount of such inaccuracy, and the base
set of accurate emi ssions fromwhich this inaccuracy
i s derived.

MR BURKE: Do you want me to give you a
specific exanmple? |Is that what you're |ooking for?
Yeah, | can't answer that question right now
mean, | think you can go back and | ook at one of the
early versions of the Agency's witten proposal, one
of the -- | don't knowif it was the second draft or
the third draft. | can't remenber which at this

point, but it listed quantification protocols and
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acknow edged that sone are nore accurate than
ot hers.

In reality, we may be -- our estinmate may
be of f by sone percentage, and that's the kind of
accuracy |I'mtal king about, although | really can't
gi ve you a specific exanple at this point.

M5. SAWER: | believe you' ve answered our
questions four and five. 1'lIl ask question six. |Is
it your position that the proposed ERVS rule wll
make it profitable for a source to increase its
productions -- production of products that result in
hazardous air pollutants?

MR BURKE: | don't think it's the Lung
Associ ation's position that this will -- the ERVSB
rul e woul d necessarily nake it profitable.
certainly can't speak to a conpany's, you know,
profit margin or anything along those |ines, but
what we do believe to be the case is that the ERVS
rule could make it economically nore feasible for a
source to increase its em ssions of toxic VOM

W understand, again, as | nentioned
earlier, that it's probably unlikely given the way
the proposal is set up and the limted nunber of

transactions that are likely to occur and so on and
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so forth, but given the potential ramfications of
these |l ocalized increases prior to MACT kicking in,
we thought it made sense to guard agai nst that
potentiality.

M5. SAWER: |I'mnot sure if you clarified this
in your direct testinony. Qur question nunber eight
relates to your position that ATUs in the ACVA
account shoul d be reduced consistent with the rate
at which the em ssions cap is declining.

Are you aware that the em ssions cap under
the rule -- the proposed rule is established in 1999
and does not decline separate from an amendnent to
the rule?

MR BURKE: Yeah, | amaware of that, and it's a
good point. That conment is really relevant only if
the ERVS were to be extended beyond 1999 and we were
to have a declining em ssions cap beyond that.

The point we were trying to make is if
you' ve got, whatever, 100 ATUs in the ACMA in 1999,
let's say, and the allotnments to everybody el se are
declining at a rate of, say, four percent or
sonet hing, in the year 2007, assum ng this program
were still in place, even if nobody ever touched

those ATUs in the ACMA, they shoul d be reduced, you
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know, four percent a year as well instead of

remai ning at that 100 level, but given this program
is targeted only at the year 1999, it's not a

rel evant conment.

MR, KANERVA: Roger Kanerva. M. Burke, you
mentioned in your testinony that the Lung
Associ ati on reconmended di scounting the banking or
carrying ATUs that are carried over to the next
season. Are you aware of some of the benefits that
are avail able from eni ssions banking, and we
mentioned one to see if it's one you agree with,
like, early reductions that it's an incentive to
encour age early reductions of em ssions?

MR BURKE: Sure.

MR, KANERVA: What do you think the inmpact would
be if this discounting procedure on, for instance,
that type of activity, the early reductions?

MR, BURKE: This is the -- you're referring to
t he deduct -- our recommendation to deduct a
percent age of the ATU that gets banked --

MR KANERVA: Right.

MR BURKE: -- to the next year?
MR, KANERVA: | think you said five percent or
sormet hi ng.
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MR, BURKE: Yeah. W recommended five percent
reducti on.

MR, KANERVA: Right. And how that m ght affect
ot her benefits that banking provides.

MR BURKE: Right. W don't think it affects --
a deduction, for exanple, would create a significant
di sincentive or | should say it would offset the
incentive created by -- let ne back up. Ofset the
incentive to, for exanple, create early reductions
that the banking does allow. It's five percent.
It's not 20 percent or sonething along those |ines.

| think -- we think it strikes a nice

bal ance between nmoving us at a nore expeditious rate
towards attai nnent while at the sane tinme allow ng
for the incentive that Roger -- M. Kanerva
mentioned for early reductions and so on

M5. SAWER: | don't believe we have anything
further at this tine.

MR, FEINEN: Any ot her questions fromthe
audi ence? Do you have anyt hi ng?

MS. HENNESSEY: | have a question or two.

M. Burke, you suggested that we have a cap

on toxic air contam nants until MACT is in place for

the affected sources. Can you expl ain how that
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woul d wor k?

MR BURKE: | can explain one option, and |'m
sure there are others, but one option is to
establish a toxic VOM basel i ne, perhaps, in a manner
consistent with the overall VOM baseline that's been
proposed be it through this rule based on actua
em ssions, historic actual enissions, and you
woul d -- essentially, the baseline would then be the
cap until MACT is enacted for the sources affected
by the ERMS rul e.

In other words, it would say until MACT is
in place, your toxic VOM enissions are not going to
go above, you know, X, you know, the baseline, and,
again, that's to nake sure that the trade, the known
ERMS trade, wouldn't send us above that baseline.

You coul d use sone ot her nethodol ogy for
devel oping this cap until MACT is in place, but that
is one approach to use the actual historic em ssions
to establish a baseline or a cap

MS. HENNESSEY: But that wouldn't require there
to be the two categories of ATUs though, right?
You' d need to have a category for toxic VOV and
anot her category for nontoxic VOVs, right?

MR, BURKE: I'"'mnot sure that that's the case.
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I think a provision of the rule would be that no
transaction result in toxic VOM em ssions period
that exceed a certain level until MACT is applied.
I don't think you would need to have two different
types of ATUs.

MS. HENNESSEY: Not hing el se. Thank you.

MR, BURKE: Thank you.

MR, FEINEN: | have no questi ons.

MR, HURLEY: | have a question. In your
testinmony, you tal ked about expandi ng the public
di scl osure of the ATU account. | didn't quite hear
you. Did you tal k about al so baseline determ nation?

MR BURKE: Well, 1'mnot --

MR HURLEY: |'mjust asking.

MR, BURKE: When | was tal king about the
accounting and the conpliance, no, | was not
specifically referring to the baseline
determ nation, although I think there are sone
provisions in the rule to subject that to public
scrutiny.

MR, HURLEY: | guess the follow al ong question
is on this expansion of the conpany's individual ATU
accounting, would you put any -- would you provide

for any confidentiality provisions if a conpany
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i ncluded in those, or would you feel that this is
public disclosure wi thout qualification?

MR BURKE: No. W wouldn't suggest public
di scl osure without qualification. There would be
some qualifications if the confidentiality is
i nevitably going to be one of those I'm sure, but,
nonet hel ess, | think you could have a good
di scl osure, good accounting system you know,
coupled with the confidentiality requirenents.

MR, FEINEN. Ckay. |If there's no nore
questions, |I'll excuse M. Burke.

| think that will be it for today. We'll
pick up tonorrow. | think we agreed for 9:00
o'clock in the nmorning. W wll be starting out
with the ERVS Coalition witnesses, and then al ong
the day with time permtting for anything else.

I just want to reiterate that we tal ked
early this nmorning about the close of public
comments being May 16th with the Board nost |ikely
going to pursue it sonetine in June. Thank you.
W' Il see you tonorrow at 9:00 o' cl ock.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled

proceedi ngs were adj ourned.)
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